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NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the Thirty-Third Annual General Meeting (“the Meeting” or “AGM”) of
NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED (“the Company”) will be held on Tuesday, 30th
September, 2025 at 01:00 P.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio -Visual Means
(OAVM), to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. TO RECEIVE, CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE

COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31STMARCH, 2025, TOGETHER WITH
THE REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON.
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon
laid before this meeting, be and are hereby considered, approved and adopted.”

2. TO APPOINT DIRECTOR IN PLACE OF MRS. BHAVNA SANGHI, DIRECTOR (DIN:
02681438) WHO RETIRES BY ROTATION AND BEING ELIGIBLE, OFFERS HERSELF FOR
RE-APPOINTMENT.
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Bhavna Sanghi who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers herself for reappointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation.”

3. TO RE-APPOINT THE STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY, AND TO FIX THEIR
REMUNERATION AND IN THIS REGARD, MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO CONSIDER,
AND IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATION(S) THE FOLLOWING
RESOLUTION AS AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force) and pursuant to the recommendation of the Board, M/s. Anant Rao & Mallik,
Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (FRN: 006266S) be and is hereby re-appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company, to hold office for a period of 5 (five) consecutive years commencing
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 37thAnnual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in the financial year 2029-2030, at such remuneration as
may be determined by the Board in consultation with the auditors in addition to reimbursement
of all outof-pocket expenses to be incurred by them in connection with the audit.”
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. TO APPROVE THE MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS OF THE COMPANY,

AND IN THIS REGARD, TO PASS, WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATIONS, THE
FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS ORDINARY RESOLUTION:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) and other applicable provisions, if any, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings
of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended, Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and in
accordance with the Company’s policy on Related Party Transaction(s), approval of the members
be and is hereby accorded to enter into the transaction as stated below, at prevailing market
rates and at arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company with the
related parties as defined under Section 2(76) of the Act and Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the Listing
Regulations, as follows:

Sl. Name of Nature of Type of Transaction Duration
No. related parties relationship Contract/ Transaction Limit
1. Sanghi Company Purchase/ sale of Rs. From

Jewellers having various manufactured 50,00,00,000/- 01.10.2025 to
Private common products and availing (Rupees Fifty 30.09.2026
Limited directors Jobwork services, at Crores only)

prevailing market rates
and on arm’s length
basis.

2. Uday Company Sale/ purchase of Rs. From
Jewellery having various manufactured 50,00,00,000/- 01.10.2025 to
Industries common products, at prevailing (Rupees Fifty 30.09.2026
Limited directors market rates and on Crores only)

arm’s length basis

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to delegate
all or any of the powers conferred on it by or under this resolution to any Committee of Directors
of the Company and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered
necessary or expedient to give effect to this resolution.

5. TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF CS. AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA, COMPANY
SECRETARY IN WHOLE TIME PRACTICE AS SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND IN THIS
REGARD, TO PASS, WITH OR WITHOUT MODIFICATIONS, THE FOLLOWING
RESOLUTION AS ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing
Regulations”) (including any modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof), Section 204 and other
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applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable
provisions of law, including any amendments, modifications, variations or reenactments to any
of the aforesaid from time to time and based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee
and the Board of Directors, the approval of the Members of the Bank be and is hereby accorded
for the appointment of  CS. AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA, Company Secretary (ICSI
Membership No.- 3489; CP No.- 3479)who have offered themselves for appointment and have
confirmed their eligibility to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Bank, to conduct
secretarial audit of the Bank for a period of 5 (Five) years i.e. from FY 2024-25 till and including
FY 2028-39 and to provide such other services as permissible under applicable laws and as
approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which
term shall be deemed to include any Committee(s) of the Board or any other persons to whom
powers are delegated by the Board as permitted under the Act and / or rules made thereunder).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the audit fees payable to CS. AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA,
for conducting secretarial audit of the Narbada Gems & Jewellery Limited as prescribed under
relevant provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations and other applicable provisions of law
(including any statutory amendments, modifications, variations or re-enactments thereto, from
time to time).

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution, the
Board be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the Bank, to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary or desirable for such purpose
and with power on behalf of the Bank, to settle all questions, difficulties or doubts that may
arise in regard to implementation of the resolution including but not limited to determination of
roles and responsibilities / scope of work of the Secretarial Auditors, negotiating, finalising,
amending, signing, delivering, executing the terms of appointment including any contracts or
documents in this regard, without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the
members”.

6. TO RE-APPOINT Mr. SUNIL GARG AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY,
TO CONSIDER AND IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS, THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS A
SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule
IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Companies
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [including
any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
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being in force], Mr. SUNIL GARG (DIN: 08851283), who was appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company by way of a resolution passed on 30th September 2020 in Annual
General Meeting and who holds office of Independent Director up to the date of the Annual
General Meeting to be held in the year 2025 and who is eligible for being re-appointed as an
Independent Director, be and is hereby re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company,
not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term commencing from 1st October
2025 to 30th September 2030 (both days inclusive).”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary or expedient to give
effect to this resolution including making necessary entries in the Register of Directors of the
Company.”

7. TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF MR. DILEEP KUMAR JAIN (DIN: 00380311) AS AN
NON EXECUTIVE-INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY, TO CONSIDER AND
IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS, THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS A SPECIAL
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule
IV and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or
reenactment thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 16(1)(b) and all other applicable
provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) (including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Mr. Dileep Kumar Jain (DIN: 00380311)
who was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of Independent Director of the
Company by the Board of Directors w.e.f August 09,2025 in terms of Section 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and who has
submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of independence as provided under Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and who is eligible for appointment under the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director of
the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive
years w.e.f  August 09,2025.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to do all
such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary or expedient to give
effect to this resolution including making necessary entries in the Register of Directors of the
Company.”
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8. APPOINTMENT AS WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR AND CHANGE IN DESIGNATION OF MRS.
BHAVNA SANGHI FROM NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR WITH
REMUNERATION, OF THE COMPANY, TO CONSIDER AND IF THOUGHT FIT, TO PASS,
THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS A SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereto and the
rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for
the time being in force), and subject to such other approvals, consents and permissions as
may be required, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for
appointment as Whole Time Director and change in designation of Mrs. Bhavna Sanghi (DIN:
02681438) from Non-Executive Director to Whole-Time Director of the Company, for a period
of 5 years w.e.f. 01.10.2025 on such terms and conditions including at a remuneration as
mentioned in the table below, inclusive of any remuneration directly or otherwise or by way of
salary and allowances, performance based rewards/ incentives, on the terms and conditions
(including remuneration payable in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial
year during the tenure of his appointment) as explained in the explanatory statement annexed
to the notice of the meeting in terms of Section 102 of the Act.”

PARTICULARS REMUNERATION
Basic Salary: 2,00,000
House Rent Allowance: 1,20,000
Dearness Allowance: 80,000
Monthly Gross Salary: 4,00,000

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT even in the absence of or inadequacy of profits in any Financial
Year, subject to the provisions of Schedule V of the Act and such other approvals as may be
required, Mrs. Bhavna  Sanghi, be paid the same remuneration as mentioned above as minimum
remuneration for the entire tenure or such period as may be approved by the Shareholders of
the Company and / or Central Government, if required.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary,
desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

9. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION OF MR. SANJAY KUMAR SANGHI
–MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT 2013:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution:
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RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Schedule V thereto and the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), and such
other approvals, consents and permissions as may be required, the consent of the members
be and is hereby accorded for the payment of remuneration to Mr. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi (DIN:
00629693), Managing Director of the Company, on the terms and conditions including
remuneration, perquisites and other benefits as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed
to this Notice, for a remaining  period of his tenure with effect from 01.10.2025, with liberty to
the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to
include any Committee thereof) to alter or vary the terms and conditions of remuneration in
such manner as may be agreed to between the Board and Mr. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi, provided
that the remuneration payable shall not exceed the limits prescribed under the Act or any
statutory modification(s) thereto. The Remuneration payable is mentioned below in the table.”

PARTICULARS REMUNERATION
Basic Salary: 3,00,000
House Rent Allowance: 1,80,000
Dearness Allowance: 1,20,000
Monthly Gross Salary: 6,00,000

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT even in the absence of or inadequacy of profits in any Financial
Year, subject to the provisions of Schedule V of the Act and such other approvals as may be
required, Mr. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi be paid the same remuneration as mentioned above as
minimum remuneration for the entire tenure or such period as may be approved by the
Shareholders of the Company and / or Central Government, if required.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary,
desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

By the order of the Board

Sd/-
Date: 29-08-2025 Sanjay Kumar Sanghi
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director

DIN: 00629693
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NOTES:
1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’), inter-alia, vide its General Circular Nos. 14/2020

dated April 8, 2020 and 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, followed by General Circular Nos. 20/
2020 dated May 5, 2020, and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 9/2024
dated September 19, 2024 (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated
May 12, 2020 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021
and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/
CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 2024 (collectively referred to as “SEBI
Circulars”)has permitted the holding of the AGM through Video Conferencing ('VC') or through
Other Audio-Visual Means ('OAVM'), without the physical presence of the Members at a common
venue.
Further, Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI'),vide its Circulars dated May 12, 2020,
January 15, 2021,May 13, 2022 and January 5, 2023 ('SEBI Circulars') and other applicable
circulars issued in this regard, have provided relaxations from compliance with certain provisions
of the SEBI Listing Regulations.
In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, SEBI Listing Regulations and MCA
Circulars, the 33rdAGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM on Monday,30th
September, 2025 at 01:00 P.M (IST). The proceedings of the AGM will be deemed to be conducted
at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 1st Floor, 3-6-307/1, 3-6-307/2, 3-6-308/1,
Hyderguda Main Road, Simple Natural Systems, Basheerbagh, Hyderabad, Telangana, India,
500004

2. The Company has appointed CDSL to provide VC/OAVM (Video Conferencing) facility for the
e-AGM.

3. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
made thereunder, Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) and SEBI Listing Regulations
wherever applicable, in respect of the items of Special Business set out in the notice, is annexed
hereto and forms part of the Notice.

4. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a
member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held through VC/OAVM pursuant to the
aforesaid Circulars, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly,
the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and
hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and Route Map of the venue of AGM are not annexed
to this Notice. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act,
2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State
or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC / OAVM and cast their votes through e-
Voting.

5. The attendance of the members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of ascertaining the Quorum under Section 103 of Companies Act, 2013.
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6. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before the scheduled time
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000
members on first come first serve basis. This will not include large members (Shareholders
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM
without restriction on account of first come first served basis.

7. Pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be
available for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and route map of AGM are
not annexed to this Notice.

8. In accordance with the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 18
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 Notice of the AGM along with
the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent by electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail
addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories, unless any Member has requested
for a physical copy of the same. Further, the Notice of AGM has been uploaded on the website
of the Company at www.narbadajewellery.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the
websites of the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated
on the website of CDSL at www.evotingindia.com.

9. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, e-
mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates,
nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details,
bank account number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc.,:

a) For shares held in electronic form: to their Depository Participants (DPs)
b) For shares held in physical form: to the Company/Registrar and Transfer Agent in prescribed

Form ISR-1 and other forms pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/
P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 3, 2021. The Company has sent letters through its RTA for
furnishing the required details. Members may also refer to link available on Company’s website
www.narbadajewellery.com
Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required
to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/
Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM on its
behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall be sent to
the Company at  www.narbadajewellery.com

11. All the documents which are relevant and referred in the Notice or Explanatory Statement will
be available for Inspection of members at the registered office of the Company during the working
hours on all working days upto the date of AGM.

12. In compliance with Section 108 of the Act, read with the corresponding rules, Regulation 44 of
the Listing Regulations and in terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/ CIR/P/2020/242
dated December 9, 2020, the Company is providing remote e-voting facility to its members, to
enable them to cast their votes electronically through the facility provided by Central Depository
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Services (India) Limited (‘CDSL’). The instructions for remote e-voting are appended to this
Notice. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may participate
in the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again.

13. Any person, who become Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice of AGM and hold
shares as on 19th  September, 2025 (“cut-off date”) may obtain the login ID and password by
sending an email to the RTA at rta@cilsecurities.comby mentioning their Folio No. / DP ID and
Client ID No. However, if you are already registered with CDSL for e-voting then you can use
your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forget your password, you can
reset your password by using “Forget User Details/Password” option available on
www.evotingindia.com.

14. Shri Ajay Suman Shrivastava, Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the entire e-voting process (remote e-voting and e-voting at the AGM)
in a fair and transparent manner.

15. After completion of the scrutiny of the electronic votes, the Scrutinizer will submit his report to
the Chairman. The voting results along with Scrutinizer’s Report will be announced within two
working days of the conclusion of AGM. The said results would be displayed at the Registered
Office of the Company and on its website at www.narbadajewellery.com and simultaneously
intimated to the CDSL and BSE Limited (“BSE”). The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of
votes cast will be final.

16. CDSL e-Voting System – For e-voting and Joining Virtual meetings.
THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL
MEETINGSARE AS UNDER:
Step 1 : Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.
Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in
physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(i) The voting period begins on Saturday, 27th September, 2025 at 9.00 AM and ends on Monday,
29th September, 2025 at 05:00 PM. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date)
19th September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled
by CDSL for voting on 29th September, 2025 at 05:00 PM

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at
the meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility
to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed
that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a
negligible level.
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(iv) Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple
user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

(v) In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants.
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the
ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and
convenience of participating in e-voting process.

(vi)  In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on
e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in
demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id
in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting system in case of individual
shareholders holding shares in demat mode.
Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

Type of
shareholders  Login Method

Individual 1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through
Shareholders their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
holding securities e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to
in Demat mode login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or
with CDSL visit  www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System
Depository Myeasi Tab.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as
per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option,
the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual
meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided
to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/
KARVY/LINKINTIME/ BIGSHARE, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available
at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.comand click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then
click on registration option.
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5) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindia.com. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP
on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After
successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where
the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all
e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual 1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the
Shareholders e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
holding securities URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
in demat mode mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the
with NSDL “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’
Depository section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and

Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service
provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS
“Portal or click   at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User
ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/
OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you
can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting
& voting during the meeting.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
Shareholders your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.
(holding securities After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click
in demat mode) on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after
login through their successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
Depository company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected
Participants (DP) to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e., CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
securities in Demat mode with CDSL CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free
no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
securities in Demat mode with NSDL NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990
and 1800 22 44 30

Step 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in
physical mode and non-individual shareholders in demat mode.

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and
shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with

the Company.
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted

on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:
For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable

for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or
contact Company/RTA.
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Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in
Bank your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
Details • If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the
OR Date member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field.
of Birth
(DOB)

(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(ix) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection

screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password
field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts
for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(x) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(xi) Click on the EVSN for the relevant Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited on which you choose
to vote.

(xii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
(xiv) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote,
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xvi) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting

page.
(xvii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the

image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
system.

(xviii) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made
available to scrutinizer for verification.

(xix) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only.
• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module.
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• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote
on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of
any wrong mapping.

• It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA)
which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in
the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address
viz; comsec@narbadajewellery.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same
in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-
VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:
1. The procedure for attending meeting& e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions

mentioned above for e-voting.
2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be

displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.
3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting.

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.
4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.
5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to

avoid any disturbance during the meeting.
6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 2 days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number
at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have
queries may send their queries in advance 2 days prior to meeting mentioning their name,
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These
queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.
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8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express
their views/ask questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if
the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the
votes cast by such shareholders may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the
meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/
RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP)

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual
meetings through Depository.
If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting
System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no.
1800 22 55 33
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to
Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing,
25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  toll free no. 1800
22 55 33.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
(“THE ACT”)
The following Statements sets out all material facts relating to the Special Businesses mentioned in
the Notice:
Item no. 4:
Your Company proposes to enter into transactions with Uday Jewellery Industries Limited (UJIL)
and Sanghi Jewellers Private Limited (SJPL), which are under the same Promoter Group and
majority of the Directors are common. The proposed transactions shall be at Arms’ Length basis and
in the ordinary course of business.
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) and the applicable Rules framed there under read
with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”)
provide that Related Party Transactions will require prior approval of shareholders through ordinary
resolution, if the aggregate value of transaction(s) amounts to 10% or more of the annual turnover of
the Company as per last audited financial statements of the Company.
Uday Jewellery Industries Limited (UJIL)and Sanghi Jewellers Private Limited (SJPL) come under the
ambit of Related Party for the purpose of Related Party Transaction(s) in terms of provisions of the Act
and Listing Regulations.
Hence, approval of the shareholders is being sought for the said Related Party Transactions proposed
to be entered into by your Company with Uday Jewellery Industries Limited (UJIL) and SanghiJewellers
Private Limited (SJPL) for a period of 12 months starting from 1st October, 2025 to 30th September,
2026.
Pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, as amended till
date, particulars of the transaction(s) with the related parties, as follows:

Sl. Name of Nature of Type of Transaction Duration
No. related parties relationship Contract/ Transaction Limit
1. Sanghi Company Purchase/ sale of Rs. From

Jewellers having various manufactured 50,00,00,000/- 01.10.2025
Private common products and availing (Rupees Fifty to 30.09.2026
Limited directors Jobwork services, Crores only)

At prevailing market
rates and on arm’s
length basis.

2. Uday Company Sale/ purchase of Rs. From
Jewellery having various manufactured 50,00,00,000/- 01.10.2025 to
Industries common products, At prevailing (Rupees Fifty 30.09.2026
Limited directors market rates and on Crores only)

arm’s length basis

The Board of Directors of the Company and their respective relatives are concerned and interested in
the resolution, up to the monetary value of transaction(s) proposed to be entered.
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ITEM:5:

In terms of Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, each as amended, the Company is required to appoint Secretarial Auditors
for a period of 5 years commencing FY2025-26, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company in
terms of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation
24A and other applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with applicable SEBI Circulars.

The Management considered the eligibility of Mr. Ajay Suman Shrivastava who is the Secretarial
Auditor of the Company till date. CS Ajay Suman Shrivastava is a seasoned Practicing Company
Secretary based in Hyderabad, India, with over 24 years of professional experience in corporate
compliance, governance, and secretarial audits. He holds a Certificate of Practice (COP No. 3479).
His extensive experience and commitment to corporate compliance make him a respected professional
in the field of corporate governance.

The Management evaluated the  expertise and past performance of CS Ajay Suman Shrivastava  as
the Secretarial Auditors of the Company. After that The Management presented the outcome of the
assessment to the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Audit Committee recommended to the board, the appointment of CS. AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA
a peer reviewed Company Secretary (ICSI Membership No.- 3489; CP No.- 3479), as the Secretarial
Auditors of the Company for the year 2024-25 and further for a period of five years from the financial
year 2024-25 to 2028-29 to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Board, at its meeting held on May 28, 2025, considered the recommendation of the Audit Committee
with respect to the appointment of CS AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA as the Secretarial Auditors.
After due consideration and review, the Board recommends for approval of the Members the appointment
of CS AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the year 2024-25
and further for a period of five years from the financial year 2024-25 to 2028-29 to conduct Secretarial
Audit of the Company, at such remuneration including out of pocket expenses and subject to taxes as
applicable, to be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company, from time to time;

CS AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA has provided its consent to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors
and has confirmed that, if appointed, its appointment, will be in accordance with Regulation 24A of the
SEBI Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated
December 31, 2024 and other relevant applicable SEBI Circulars issued in this regard.

The proposed remuneration to be paid to Ajay Suman Srivastava for audit of FY 2024-25 is Rs. 40000/
- (Rupees Forty Thousand only) plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses.
The remuneration to be paid to Secretarial Auditors for the remaining term i.e. for audit of FY2025-26
through FY2028-29 shall be mutually agreed between the Board, based on recommendation(s) of the
Audit Committee, and the Secretarial Auditors, from time to time.
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None of the Director(s) or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives are
concerned or interested in the Resolution mentioned at Item No. 5 of the Notice. The Board recommends
the Resolution set forth in Item No. 5 for the approval of the Members.

ITEM 6: RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. SUNIL GARG AS AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE
COMPANY.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 17 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
Listing Regulations”) Mr. Sunil Garg was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a
term commencing from 11.12.2020 up to the date of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year
2025-26 ) by way of a Resolution passed in Annual General Meeting held on 11.12.2020.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) at its Meeting held on 09.08.2025 August
2025  on the basis of performance evaluation of Independent Directors and taking into account the
external business environment, the business knowledge, acumen, expertise, experience and the
substantial contribution made by Mr. Sunil Garg during his tenure, has recommended to the Board that
his continued association as Independent Directors of the Company would be beneficial to the Company.

Based on the recommendations of the NRC, the Board of Directors at its Meeting held on 09.08.2025
August 2025 has recommended the re-appointment of Mr. Sunil Garg, as Independent Directors of the
Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term from 01.10.2025 till 30.09.2030

The notice from a member under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature, the declaration
for non-disqualification under Section 164 of the Act, declaration of independence, disclosure under
Section 184(1) of the Act and consent for appointment have been received. His brief profile is placed
before the members for perusal.

The Board recommends the passing of the Special Resolution as set out in the Item no. 6 of the Notice
for the appointment of Shri Sunil Garg as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation.

Brief Profile:

Shri Sunil Garg, aged about 43 years has fairly good experience in Business Administration and
management. As on 31.03.2025 he is also director in Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited

Except Mr. Sunil Garg and his relatives, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out
at Item No.6.



NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED

21

ITEM-7: APPOINTMENT OF MR. DILEEP KUMAR JAIN (DIN: 00380311) AS NON EXECUTIVE
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY

Mr. Dileep Kumar Jain (DIN: 00380311) is proposed to be appointed as a Director and as Independent
Director on the Board of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 and 152 of the Act
read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the Listing
Agreement with the stock exchange. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has
recommended his appointment which was further approved by the Board. Mr. Dileep Kumar Jain is
proposed to hold office as Independent Director of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) consecutive
years in line with the provisions of Sections 149(10) and 149(11) of the Act and shall not be liable to
retire by rotation.

 In accordance with Section 149 of the Act and provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), Mr. Dileep Kumar Jain meets the criteria of
independence as prescribed and the Company has received a declaration from him in this regard.

 The notice from a member under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing his candidature, the declaration
for non-disqualification under Section 164 of the Act, declaration of independence, disclosure under
Section 184(1) of the Act and consent for appointment have been received. His brief profile is placed
before the members for perusal. The Board recommends the passing of the special Resolution as set
out in the Item no. 7 of the Notice for the appointment of Mr. Dileep Kumar Jain as an Independent
Director, not liable to retire by rotation.

Profile:

Mr. Dileep Kumar Jain aged about 68 years has fairly with over 40 years’ experience in seasoned
banking and finance professional including 22 years in development banking with IFCI Ltd., where he
retired as Executive Director (Officiating), and 18 years in commercial banking with institutions like
The Bank of Rajasthan (now ICICI Bank) and Punjab National Bank.

His directorships held in other public companies as on 31.03.2025:
1. North eastern Ind.& technical consultancy Organisation ltd.
2. Swastika infra limited
3. Himachal consultancy Organisation ltd
4. Manglam build-developers limited
5. Lehar Footwears limited
6. Supriya lifescience limited
7. Rajasthan consultancy Organisation ltd.

Except Mr. Dileep Kumar Jain and his relatives, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company and their relatives is concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution
set out at Item No.7.
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ITEM:8: APPOINTMENT AS WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR AND CHANGE IN DESIGNATION OF MRS.
PRITHA SANGHI FROM NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR WITH
REMUNERATION, OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 29.08.2025, has approved the change
in designation of Mrs. Bhavna Sanghi from Non-Executive Director to Whole-Time Director of the
Company.

The proposed change in designation is in recognition of her experience, expertise, and significant
contributions to the Company’s growth and operations. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
has recommended her appointment as Whole-Time Director, along with the remuneration package
proposed, considering the industry standards, Company’s financial position, and her responsibilities.

The details of the remuneration, terms and conditions of appointment, and other relevant particulars
as required under the Companies Act, 2013, are as follows:

• Designation: Whole-Time Director
• Tenure: 5 years, commencing from 30.09.2025
• Remuneration: Rs. 400000/- Per Month
• Duties & Responsibilities:

a. Oversee and manage the day-to-day operations of the Company.
b. Implement business strategies and monitor financial performance.
c. Ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and corporate governance norms.
d. Provide leadership to senior management and develop talent within the organization.
e. Report to and assist the Board of Directors in strategic and operational matters.

The Board believes that her appointment will benefit the Company and its stakeholders.

Mr. Ritesh Kumar Sanghi, spouse of the appointee and Mr.  Sanjay Kumar Sanghi being relative are
concerned or interested in the resolution. None of the other directors is concerned or interested in the
resolution.

ITEM NO. 9

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 29.08.2025, has considered and approved
the remuneration of Mr. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi, Managing Director of the Company, in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The proposed remuneration is in recognition of the significant contribution made by Mr. Sanjay Kumar
Sanghi to the growth and performance of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee
has reviewed and recommended the remuneration package considering:
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• The Company’s financial position and performance,
• Industry benchmarks for similar roles,
• The responsibilities and scope of work of the Managing Director.

Details of Remuneration:

• Salary and Perquisites: Rs. 600000/- per month

The remuneration proposed is within the limits prescribed under Section 197 read with Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Board is confident that the proposed remuneration is fair, reasonable,
and in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.

Mr. Ritesh Kumar Sanghi, brother of the appointee and Mrs Bhavna Sanghi being relative are concerned
or interested in the resolution. None of the other directors is concerned or interested in the resolution.
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS RETIRING BY ROTATION/ SEEKING
APPOINTMENT/RE- APPOINTMENT AT THE 33rd ANNUAL GENERAL

MEETING OF THE COMPANY:
(Pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India)

Name of the Director Mrs. Bhavna Sanghi
Designation Director
Brief Profile
Date of Birth 26-09-1974
Qualifications Undergraduate
DIN 02681438
Nationality Indian
Date of Appointment / 18-08-2022
Reappointment on the Board (Original Appointment Date14.05.2014)
of the Company
Nature of expertise in specific
functional areas
Terms and conditions of Non-executive Director of the Company,
appointment or reappointment liable to retire by rotation.
Remuneration proposed
to be paid .
Last drawn remuneration
No. of share held as 25,08,499
on the date of Notice
Relationship with Directors, Mrs. Bhavna Sanghi is the wife of Mr. Ritesh Kumar Sanghi
Managers & KMP and Relative of Mr. Sanjay kumar Sanghi
Number of Board Meetings 7
attended during FY 2024-25
Name(s) of other Companies 2
in which Directorships held
Chairman/ Member of the
Committees of Boards of Nil
other companies.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To
The Members,
NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED

The Board of Directors are delighted to present the Thirty third Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company (‘‘the Company’’ or ‘‘NGJL), together with the Audited Financial Statements
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 (FY 2024-25).

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND OPERATIONS:

Financial Results:
The Audited Financial Statements of your Company as on March 31, 2025, are prepared in
accordance with the relevant applicable Indian Accounting Standards (“IND AS”) and Regulation
33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

The key highlights of standalone financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2025, as
compared with the previous year is summarized below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Revenue from operations 8538.65 8431.70
Other Income 24.87 30.38
Total Revenue 8563.52 8462.07
Expenses 7900.18 7773.78
Profit before Tax 663.34 688.30
Tax Expense -                   -
Current tax 174.58 179.81
Tax pertaining to previous years -  -
Deferred tax -       -
Profit after Tax 488.76 508.48
Earnings per Equity share 2.31 2.40

(i) Operational Review:
The Company witnessed strong demand across its products achieving revenue uplift and ending
the year on a strong note. Revenue from operations was recorded as Rs. 8538..65 Lakhs
against Rs 8431.70 Lakhs during previous year. The Company reported a Net Profit of Rs.
488.76 Lakhs as against Rs.  508.48 Lakhs earned during previous year.

Your Company is actively engaging with customers to nurture long-term partnerships while also
seeking to establish new relationships. The Directors remain optimistic about the business's
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prospects and are hopeful for improved performance and increased revenue in the coming
year. They are confident that these efforts will lead to greater success and sustained growth for
the Company.

2. COMPANY’S STATE OF AFFAIR:
An overview provides a detailed snapshot of the company's growth, strategic marketing approach,
and industry challenges. Here's a concise summary highlighting the key points:

Company Performance and Valuation

o Growth Metrics: Total Income: 8563.52 Lakhs in Q4 FY2025 compared to 8462.07 Lakhs in Q4
FY2024, reflecting a YOY growth of 1.20%.

o Profit After Tax (PAT): 488.76 Lakhs (Q4FY2025) compared to 508.48 Lakhs (Q4FY2024),
reflecting a slight decrease of about 3.88%.

o Earning Per Share (EPS) has slightly decreased to 2.31(Q4FY2025) from 2.40(Q4FY2024).

• Financial Strength:  Strong financial fundamentals are evidenced by peer-average net margins
and ROE percentages. The intrinsic value of the company exceeds its current market
capitalization, suggesting potential for further growth.

Marketing Strategy
• Communication:
a. Pull Mechanism: Leverages reputation and cumulative advantages to attract customers rather

than traditional push methods.

b. Direct Marketing: Utilizes personal presentations, product demonstrations, and participation in
industry events to build and maintain relationships.

• Customer Engagement & Retention:
a. Acquisition Criteria: Focuses on clients' creditworthiness, market standing, and long-term

relationship potential.

b. Ongoing Engagement: Regular interaction to align with customer preferences and market trends,
aiming for high customer satisfaction and delight.

• Target Audience Segmentation:
a. National Chains: Formal presentations and demonstrations (e.g., Kalyan Jewellers, Malabar

Gold & Diamonds).

b. Local Chains: Informal approaches with physical stock presentations (e.g., P. Satyanarayan &
Sons, Chemmanur Jewellers).

c. Family Jewellers: Personalized engagement with high retention (e.g., Mangatrai Pearls, Amarsons
Pearls & Jewels).
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• Distributors & Exporters: Tailored strategies for supply and export (e.g., Tilak Exports Imports).

• Industry Challenges and Future Outlook

a. Labor Issues: Shortage of skilled labor and resistance to automation due to traditional methods.

b. Automation: The shift towards high-end automation is ongoing but slow, with a need for systematic
training for new technologies.

FUTURE PROSPECTS: Positive impacts of industry polarization are expected within a few years,
improving margins and turnover. The company anticipates maintaining its gross profit margin despite
higher top-line growth and will continue to manage fixed expenses and gold price fluctuations effectively.

The long journey of Narbada Gems into its niche space of crafted jewellery and where it stands today
is a testament to the ability to withstand different kinds of challenges in the long-run and not only
survive but thrive in their midst.

• The Management exhibits visionary thinking from one generation to the next, each in their own
context. One of the more notable displays of the same being the decision & efforts taken to build
a strong manufacturing presence. An endeavour thought of and executed by the 4th generation
with the wisdom, guidance & platform provided by the earlier generations.

• The Company has moved into the new manufacturing capacity at Basheerbagh, Hyderabad in
a premises owned by the promoters for future growth of the Company to cater to growing
demand. The new factory will be more technology oriented and shall be a state of art facility with
well -planned layout and use of high end tech tools for the designing section. The unit specializes
in Gold ornaments studded with flat diamond and color gemstones. The said facility of the
Company will be well equipped with state-of-the-art machinery and technology by using Computer
Aided Design (CAD and Computer aided model manufacturing (CAM), increasing the overall
capacity and enhanced finishing of the products. The management is hopeful that production
capacity will be increased to three times.

• The Company is redefining its Production processes and manufacturing facilities are
benchmarked against the finest in the world and equipped with the latest, state-of-the-art
technology and machinery leading to a dedicated,  loyal and  supportive clientele for whom the
company is an integral partner and hence there is no incentive for them to deal with cumbersome
nature of switching mechanism and related costs.

• Within a short time after moving to the new state of the art factory, the established systems and
processes will lead to supply chain efficiency through leveraging of technology and  scale of
operations will set in. The long-standing presence and legacy of the group as a whole further
mitigates threats from incumbents as well as new competitors. In the industry-specific context,
it will be difficult to establish a similar level of acceptability amongst jewellery players in India.

This summary captures the essence of your detailed information and can be used to communicate
the company’s strengths, strategies, and outlook effectively.
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3. DIVIDEND:
During the Financial Year, based on the Company’s performance, In order to conserve resources
for further expansion of the Company’s business, your directors have opined to not recommend
dividend for the year 2024-25

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:
During the period under review, the Board of Directors has decided that Rs. 488.76 Lakhs to be
carried forward to the reserves being profit for the year.

5. SHARE CAPITAL:
(i) Authorised Capital:

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorized Share Capital of the
Company. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is at Rs.21,50,00,000/ divided into
2,15,00,000 Equity shares  of Rs.10/-each.

(ii) Paid-up Capital:
During the year under review, the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company stands at Rs.
21,15,73,100 divided into 2,11,57,310 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

6. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS, IF ANY:

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of the business of the
Company.

7. SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT:
To streamline the overall group structure, the Board of Directors of Narbada Gems and Jewellery
Limited (Transferor Company), in its meeting held on 16th September, 2024, approved a Scheme
of Amalgamation under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, for the amalgamation
of Narbada Gems & Jewellery Limited (Transferor Company) with Uday Jewellery Industries
Limited.

Pursuant to the said approval, a First Motion Application was jointly filed before the Hon’ble
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Hyderabad Bench, on 29th April, 2025.

The Hon’ble NCLT, vide its order dated 13th June, 2025, directed the convening of a meeting of
the equity shareholders of Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited to consider and approve the
proposed Scheme. The Tribunal also dispensed with the requirement of convening meetings of
the secured and unsecured creditors of the Company. The equity shareholders’ meeting is
scheduled to be held on 21st August, 2025.

The NCLT order dated 13th June, 2025 and July 02,2025 is available on the official website of
the Hon’ble NCLT at https://nclt.gov.in and on the Company’s website at
www.narbadajewellery.com
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8. DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC:
During the year under review, the Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits
pursuant to the provisions of Section 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 including any modification, amendment and
re-enactment thereto for the time being in force from the public.

9. SUBSIDIARY / JOINT VENTURE / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
The Company does not have any subsidiary / joint venture / associate companies during the
year under review.

10. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:
The detailed report on the Management Discussion and Analysis for the year under review as
stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(e) read with Schedule V (B) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is presented
in a separate section and forms part of this Annual Report. The Audit Committee of the Company
has reviewed the Management Discussion and Analysis Report in accordance with the provision
of Listing Regulations for the year ended March 31, 2025.

11. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS / OUTGO:

A. Conservation of Energy

The disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy pursuant to section 134(3)(m)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule8(3) of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable as our business is not specified in the schedule. However, the Company makes its
best efforts to conserve energy in a more efficient and effective manner.

B. Technology Absorption
The Company has not carried out any specific research and development activities. Accordingly,
the information related to technology absorption, adaptation and innovation is reported to be
NIL.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings
During the year under review, the Actual Foreign Exchange Earnings: Rs. 6,02,000

12. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
The Board of Directors of the Company comprises of Six (6) Directors with an optimum
combination of Executive, Non-Executive, Independent Directors. The details of Board and
Committee composition, tenure of directors, number of meetings and other details are provided
in the Corporate Governance Report which forms of this Annual Report.

Further the board in its meeting held on 09.08.2025 appoint Mr. Dileep Kumar Jain as an Additional
independent Director of the company subject to the approval of members in ensuing general
meeting.Therefore from 09.08.2025 the board comprises of 7 (seven) directors
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a) Appointment/Re-appointment/Change in Designation of Director:
During the year under review, Mr. Siddharth Goel, Non- Executive Independent Director and
Mr. Ramprasad Vempati, Non- Executive Independent Director were resigned w.e.f 31.08.2024.
Further, Mr. Balasubramanyam Danturti, Additional Non- Executive Independent Director and
Mr. Vikram Goel, Additional Non- Executive Independent Director were appointed w.e.f
31.08.2024.

In addition to this  the  board in its meeting held on 09.08.2025 appoint Mr. Dileep Kumar Jain as
an Additional independent Director of the company subject to the approval of members in ensuing
general meeting

b) Key Managerial Personnel:

i. Appointments during the year: Ms. Riya Jindal has been appointed as Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f 31.08.2024. Further, after end of Financial Year 2024-
25 and before Board Report, Mr. Sachin Upadhyay has been appointed as Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f 01.05.2025.

Resignations:
During the Year, Ms. Harsha Gami had resigned from the post of Company Secretary and
Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f 15.07.2024. Further, during the year, Ms. Riya Jindal
has resigned from the post of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company
w.e.f 31.01.2025.

The Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable contribution made by Ms. Harsha
Gami and Ms. Riya Jindal during their tenure.

Except as mentioned above, there have been no other changes in the Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company. As on March 31, 2025, the Company has following directors and Key Managerial
Personnel:

S. NO. NAME OF KMP and directors DESIGNATION
1 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi Managing Director
2 Mrs. Bhavna Sanghi Whole Time Director
3 Mr. Ritesh Kumar Sanghi Whole Time Director
4 Mr. Sunil Garg Independent Directors
5 Mr. Vikram Goel Independent Directors
6 Mr. Balasubramanyam Danturti Independent Directors
7 Mr. Bajranglal Agarwal Chief Financial officer

Remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the Act have been disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Annual report.
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c) Meetings of the Board:
During the year under review, seven (7) meetings of the Board of Directors were convened and
held. The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Act
and the SEBI Listing Regulations. The details of Board meetings and other details are provided
in the Corporate Governance Report which forms of this Annual Report.

d) Independent Directors:
(i) Statement of Declaration given by Independent Directors:

In compliance with the provisions of Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
25 (8) of the Listing Regulations, all the Independent Directors have submitted the Declaration
of Independence, stating that they meet the criteria of Independence as laid down in Section
149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1) (b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and there has been no
change in the circumstances which may affect their status as an Independent Director.

The Independent Directors have also given declaration of compliance with Rule 6(1) and 6(2) of
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, with
respect to their name appearing in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

(ii) Familiarization Programmes for Independent Directors:
In accordance with the requirements of Listing Regulations, all the Independent Directors are
familiarized with their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company at the time of appointment
and also on a recurrent basis. The details of the familiarization programme imparted to
Independent Directors of the Company during Financial Year 2024-25 are available on the
website of the Company at www.narbadajewellery.com

(f) Committee of the Board and details of meetings:
The various Board constituted Committees as stipulated under the Companies Act and Listing
Regulations are as follows:

(i) Audit Committee;
(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
(iii) Stakeholders Relationship Committee;
(iv) Corporate Responsibility Committee.

The Committees of the Board meet at regular intervals and have the requisite subject expertise
to handle and resolve matters expediently. The details of constitution, terms of appointment and
meetings of the committee is given in the Corporate Governance report as Annexure IV.

All the recommendations made by the Committees of Board including the Audit Committee
were accepted and approved by the Board.

(g) Appointment of Directors and Remuneration Policy:
The assessment and appointment of members to the Board are based on a combination of
criterion that includes ethics, personal and professional stature, domain expertise, gender diversity
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and specific qualification required for the position. The potential independent Board member is
also assessed on the basis of independence criteria defined in Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations.

In accordance with Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, and on recommendations of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board has formulated and adopted a remuneration
policy for Directors, Key Management Personnel (KMPs) and Senior Management that outlines
the guidelines related to performance evaluation of Directors, remuneration principles and Board
diversity, the policy is available on the website of the Company www.narbadajewellery.com

13. BOARD EVALUATION:
In compliance with the provisions of Section 134 (3) (p) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 17 (10) of the Listing
Regulations, an evaluation of the annual performance of the Board, its Committees and Individual
Directors were undertaken by the Board. To ensure an effective evaluation process, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors (“NRC”) has put in place
evaluation framework for conducting the performance evaluation exercise.

Based on the criteria set by NRC, the Board has carried out annual evaluation of its own
performance, its committees and individual Directors for financial year 2024-25.

The performance evaluation of the Board was conducted based on key attributes such as
composition, administration, corporate governance, independence from Management,
safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. Parameters for
evaluation of Directors included constructive participation in meetings and engagement with
colleagues on the Board. Similarly, the Committees were evaluated on parameters such as
adherence to their terms of the mandate, deliberations on key issues, reporting to Board etc.
Evaluation of the Chairman was focused on the basis of his leadership, guidance to the Board
and overall effectiveness. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

In a separate meeting held by the Independent Directors, a comprehensive evaluation was
conducted on the performance of the Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a whole, and
the Chairman of the Board.

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
All Related Party Transactions are in compliance of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
Listing Regulations. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the
Company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc., which may have potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

All Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company were in the Ordinary Course of
Business and at an Arm’s Length basis and were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee
and the Board and have been approved by shareholders also. Omnibus approval is obtained for
transactions which are foreseeable and repetitive in nature. A statement of all Related Party
Transactions is presented before the Audit Committee on quarterly basis, specifying the nature,
value and terms and conditions of the transactions. Complete details of Related Party
Transactions are given in the Notes to Financial Statements forming part of this Annual Report.
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In compliance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations, the Policy on Materiality of
Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party Transaction as approved by the
Board may be accessed on the Company’s website: www.narbadajewellery.com

Information on transactions with Related Parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are given in Form
AOC-2 and is attached as “Annexure – III” to this Annual Report.

15. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
During the year under review, the Company has complied with the various provisions of all
Secretarial Standards, including amendments thereto, as issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (‘ICSI’).

16. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
In compliance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the best of their knowledge and belief your Directors state that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for financial year ended March 31, 2025, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

b. They had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025;

c. They had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. They had prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended March, 31, 2025 on a
‘going concern basis’;

e. They had laid down proper Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company and that
such Internal Financial Controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

f. They had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

17. AUDITORS AND AUDIT REPORT:
a) Statutory Auditors: M/s Anant Rao & Malik, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Reg. No.006266S,

M.No.022644),Hyderabad were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 29th
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to hold office till the conclusion of the 33rd Annual
General Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2025 for issuing the Audit report on the financial
position of the Company. The Statutory Auditors of the Company had issued their Report for the
financial year ended 31stMarch,2025 which is with unmodified opinion (unqualified).
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There is no adverse remark(s)/qualification(s)/reservation(s) of the Statutory Auditors in their
report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025. Hence, no explanation or comments from
the Board under Section134 (3) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013 is required.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors:
During the year under review, there is no instance of frauds reported by the Auditors under
Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

b) Secretarial Auditor:

In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013and rules made thereunder, CS. Ajay Suman
Shrivastava, Practicing Company Secretary, Hyderabad (ICSI Membership No. 3489; CP
No.:3479) has been appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company. The report of the Secretarial
Auditor is enclosed as “Annexure I” to this report.

The Annual Secretarial Compliance report as per Regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations,2015 as amended, is enclosed as“ Annexure II” to this report.

c) Internal Auditors:
The Company has appointed M/s Krishna and Suresh, Chartered Accountant, Hyderabad(Firm
Registration No- 001461S) as its Internal Auditors. Their scope of work includes review of
processes for safeguarding the assets of the Company, review of operational efficiency,
effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal control strengths in all
areas.

18. CREDIT RATINGS:
1. CREDIT RATING:

The Company has been awarded {ICRA] BBB- (Rating Watch with Developing Implications)/
[ICRA] A3 Rating Watch with Developing Implications; Assigned credit rating for Cash Credit.
The rating reflects ICRA expectations that the company’s operational and financial profile will
continue to improve backed by its expanding order book position and scale, and it will maintain
healthy profit margins.

Details of Bank Facilities:
Bank Facility Tenure Previous Ratings Latest Ratings
Fund Based Long Term Rating/ CRISIL BB+/Stable ICRA]BBB- (Rating Watch

Short Term Rating (Reaffirmed) with Developing Implications)
/ [ICRA] A3 Rating Watch
with Developing Implications;
Assigned

19. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

In terms of Section 135 and Schedule- VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the provisions of Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) have been applicable to the Company. The Board has already
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constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee in accordance with the provisions
of Section 135 of the Act read with Rules thereto. The details of the Committee and terms of
reference are stated in the Corporate Governance report elsewhere in the Annual Report.-
Annexure---VII

20. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company has in place proper and adequate internal control systems that commensurate
with the nature of its business, as well as the size and complexity of its operations. Internal
control systems comprising of policies and procedures designed to ensure the reliability of
financial reporting, providing timely feedback on the achievement of operational and strategic
goals, ensure compliance with policies, procedures, applicable laws and regulations, and assure
that all assets and resources acquired are used economically.

Based on the deliberations with Internal Auditors to ascertain their views on the financial
statements, including the financial reporting system and compliance to accounting policies &
procedures, the Audit Committee was satisfied with the adequacy and effectiveness of the
internal control system followed by the Company.

21. CODE OF CONDUCT:
In compliance with Regulation 17 (5) of Listing Regulations, the Company has a comprehensive
Code of Conduct (‘the Code’) in place applicable to all the senior management personnel and
Directors including Independent Directors to such extent as may be applicable to them depending
on their roles and responsibilities.The Code provides guidance on ethical conduct of business
and compliance of law. The Code is available on the Company’s website
atwww.narbadajewellery.com

The Members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with
the respective Code of Conduct, as applicable to them for the financial year ended March 31,
2025. A declaration to this effect, signed by the Managing Director in terms of the Listing
Regulations, is given in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.

22. ANNUAL RETURN:
Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rule, 2014, the Annual Return
of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, has been hosted on the Company’s website,
which can be accessed at www.narbadajewellery.com

23. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:
Your Company is committed to maintain the high standards of corporate governance and adheres
to the requirements set out by the Securities and Exchange Board of India. The Report on
Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regulations forms part of the Annual
Report. The certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary confirming compliance of
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Part E of Schedule V of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is attached as Annexure-
IV(a)
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24. COMPANY’S POLICIES:
The details of the policies approved and adopted by the Board are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report which forms part of this Annual Report.

25. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT 2013:
The Company has not given any Loans, Guarantees or made any Investments under section
186 of the Companies Act 2013.

26. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY:
Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the Board to determine the appropriate
characteristics, skills and experience for the Board as a whole and its individual members with
an objective of having a Board with diverse backgrounds and experience. Characteristics
expected from all Directors include independence, integrity, high personal and professional
ethics, sound business judgment, ability to participate constructively in deliberations and
willingness to exercise authority in a collective manner. Policy on appointment and removal of
Directors can be accessed at the web-linkwww.narbadajewellery.com

Based on the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board has
framed a Remuneration Policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP), Senior Management and their remuneration, specifying criteria for evaluation
of performance and process. As part of the policy, Company strives to ensure that:

i. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully;

ii. Relationship between remuneration and performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

iii. Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Senior Management involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives,
appropriate to the working of Company and its goals.

The salient features of this policy are:
• This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Human Resources and Nomination and

Remuneration Committee for recommending to the Board the remuneration of the Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management and other employees of the Company.

• It lays down the parameters based on which payment of remuneration (including sitting fees
and remuneration) should be made to Non-Executive Directors.

• It lays down the parameters based on which remuneration (including fixed salary, benefits and
perquisites, commission, retirement benefits) should be given to Whole-time Directors, KMPs
and rest of the employees.



NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED

37

The Remuneration Policy, outlining the principles and guidelines for the compensation of Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), Senior Management and other employees can be accessed
at the web-link at www.narbadajewellery.com

27. VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:
In compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation
22 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated a comprehensive Whistle
Blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any.

The Whistle Blower Policy aims to encourage directors, employees and other stakeholders to
report any instances of unethical or improper activity, actual or suspected fraud or violation of
the Code of Conduct without fear of retaliation. The policy also provides access to the Chairperson
of the Audit Committee under certain circumstances. The policy may be accessed on the
Company’s website atwww.narbadajewellery.com.

During the year under review, your Company has not received any complaints under the
vigil mechanism

28. STATEMENT SHOWING THE NAMES OF THE TOP TEN EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF
REMUNERATION DRAWN AND THE NAME OF EVERY EMPLOYEE AS PER RULE 5(2) &
(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION) RULES, 2014:
A table containing the particulars in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the
Act, read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is appended as Annexure VI (a) to this Report.

A statement showing the names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and
the name of every employee is annexed to this Annual report as Annexure VI (b).

During the year, NONE of the employees are drawing a remuneration of Rs.1,02,00,000/- and
above per annum or Rs.8,50,000/- and above in aggregate per month, the limits specified under
the Section 197(12) of the Companies Act,2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 other than those
mentioned in Annexure VI (b).

29.  RATIO OF REMUNERATION TO EACH DIRECTOR:
Under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Rule 5(1) (2) & (3) of the Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration) Rules, 2014 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013
the ratio of remuneration of Managing Director (Mr. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi), of the Company to
the median remuneration of the employees is Not Applicable since Managing Director is not
paid any remuneration for the Financial Year 2024-25.

30. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING AND CODE OF FAIR DISCLOSURE:
In compliance with the provisions of SEBI (PIT) Regulations, 2015, the Board has formulated a
Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct to regulate, monitor, and report trading by Insiders.
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This code outlines the guidelines and procedures to be followed, and the disclosures required
by insiders when dealing with Company shares, while also warning them of the consequences
of non-compliance. The code of conducthas been hosted on the Company’s website, which can
be accessed atwww.narbadajewellery.com.

Further, the Board has formulated a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of
Unpublished Price Sensitive Information ("Fair Disclosure Policy"). This code ensures the fair
disclosure of events and occurrences that could affect price discovery in the market for the
Company’s securities, promoting uniformity, transparency, and fairness in dealings with all
stakeholders, and ensuring adherence to applicable laws and regulations. The Fair Disclosure
Code has been hosted on the Company’s website, which can be accessed
atwww.narbadajewellery.com.

31. DISCLOSURES UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
Your Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at workplace. It has a well -
defined policy in compliance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder.
Internal Complaint Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding
sexual harassment. All employees are covered under this policy. During the year 2024-2025,
there were no complaints received by the Committee.

Number of Sexual Number of Sexual Number of Sexual
Harassment Complaints Harassment Complaints Harassment Complaints
received disposed off pending beyond 90 days.
0 0 0

32.  MATERNITY BENEFIT UNDER MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT 1961:
During the year under review, there were no women employees who were on maternity leave or
eligible for maternity benefits under the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. As on the reporting date,
the Company does not have any employees availing or eligible for maternity-related benefits.
However, the Company remains fully compliant with all applicable provisions of the Act and is
committed to supporting women employees through appropriate workplace policies and benefits
as and when applicable.

33. LISTING STATUS:
The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE). The annual listing fees
for the year 2025-26 have been paid to the exchanges. The Company has also paid the Annual
Custody Fee to the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

34. REVISION MADE IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS/ BOARD’S REPORT:
The Company has not made any revisions to the Financial Statements or Board’s Report for
any of the three preceding financial years.
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35. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS:
During the year under review, no significant and /or material orders, passed by any Court or
Regulator or Tribunal, which may impact the going concern status of the Company and its future
operations.

36. DEVELOPMENTAND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:
The Company has a well-defined process in place to ensure appropriate identification and
treatment of risks. Risk identification exercise is inter-woven with the annual planning cycle
which ensures both regularity and comprehensiveness. The identification of risk is done at
strategic, business, operational and process levels. While the mitigation plan and actions for
risks belonging to strategic, business and key critical operational risks are driven by senior
leadership, for rest of the risks, operating managers drives the conception and subsequent
augmenting of mitigation plans.

All risks are well integrated with functional and business plans and are reviewed on a regular
basis by the senior leadership.

The Company, through its risk management process, aims to contain the risks within its risk
appetite. There are no risks which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the
Company.

37. PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016:
During the year under review, no application have been made under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, therefore there are no details of application or proceedings pending to
disclose under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).

38. ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE INITIATIVES:
The Company has taken pioneering steps in the line of business to undertake its manufacturing
activity in a premises which is a IGBC certified GREEN Building and the installations have been
very carefully structured for minimum use of polluting materials and electrical power. After few
months, Company will take steps to fulfill its power requirements from the roof top solar power
units also.

The Human capital is of prime importance in the jewellery business and the Company has been
marching ahead with various initiative for its PEOPLE. The artisans are supported for their
children education, the social aspect of their lives are well taken care.

Being a BSE listed Company, effective and orderly governance comes naturally to the Company
which is spearheaded by the Board of Directors and the Standards of Practices to be followed
for Board and Governance are well defined and are implemented with a flair of penchant and
diligence.

39. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT:

Your Company always believes in keeping the environment pollution free and is fully committed
to its social responsibility. The Company has been taking utmost care in complying with all
pollution control measures from time to time strictly as per the directions of the Government.
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We would like to place on record our appreciation for the efforts made by the management and
the keen interest shown by the Employees of your Company in this regard.

40. COST RECORDS:
Your Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148 of the
Act.

41. MD & CFO CERTIFICATION:
As required Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the MD/CFO certification is attached with the Annual report
as Annexure IV(b)

42. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION
The Company’s policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration in accordance with Section178
(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the same is available on the website of the Company at
www.narbadajewellery.com. No remuneration is being paid to the Managing Director or any
other Director of the Company. The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with rule
5 of the Companies(Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Particulars
of Employees) Rules1975, in respect of Directors and KMP’s of the Company are furnished
hereunder:

a. All pecuniary relationship or transactions, of the non-executive directors of the Company:
The Non-executive Directors does not have any pecuniary relationship or transactions of the
Company.

b. Details of percentage increase in the remuneration of each Director and CFO and
Company Secretary in the Financial Year 2024-25 are as follows:

Name Designation                           Remuneration (inRs.) Increase%
2024-25 2023-24

Sanjay Kumar Sanghi Managing Director - - -
Ritesh Kumar Sanghi Director - - -
Bajranglal Agarwal Chief Financial Officer 11,26,100 10,20,000 10.40%
CS. Harsha Patidar Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer - 1,70,553 -
CS Riya Jindal Company Secretary &

Compliance Officer 4,17,128 - -

*For the part of financial year

c. Details of a fixed component and performance-linked incentives, along with the performance
criteria: The Company does not have any performance-linked incentives for the Directors and
CFO the appointments are made for a fixed period of time on the terms and conditions in the
respective resolution passed by the Board/Members in the Meeting
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d. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2025 are 97.
e. Stock option details: Nil

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
In terms of the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect
of disclosures in the report w.r.t. employees of the Company. During the year under report,
none of the employees was in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limit prescribed under
Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014.

43. GENERAL:
During the year under review, your Directors notify that no disclosure or reporting is required for
the following items as there were no transactions related to these items during the financial year
under review:

(i) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

(ii) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of your Company under any
scheme.

(iii) The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme & Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme for its Employees/Directors.

(iv) There was no one-time settlement with any Banks or Financial Institutions during the year.
Hence, disclosure pertaining to difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of
one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan is not applicable.

44. HUMAN RESOURCE:
Your Company considers its Human Resources as the key to achieve its objectives. Keeping
this in view, your Company takes utmost care to attract and retain quality employees. The
employees are sufficiently empowered and such work environment propels them to achieve
higher levels of performance. The unflinching commitment of employees is the driving force
behind the Company’s vision. Your Company appreciates the spirit of its dedicated employees.

45. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the significant contribution made
by its employees through their dedication, hard work and commitment at all levels. The Board of
Directors also acknowledges the support extended by the analysts, bankers,central and state
government organizations and agencies, media, customers, suppliers, shareholders and investors
at large. The Board look forward to your continued support in the Future.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(Sanjay Kumar Sanghi) (Ritesh Kumar Sanghi)

Date: 09-08-2025 Managing Director Director
Place: Hyderabad DIN: 00629693 DIN: 00628033
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ANNEXURE-I
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited
1st Floor, 3-6-307/1, 3-6-307/2, 3-6-308/1,
Hyderguda Main Road, Opp Bikanerwala, Basheer Bagh,
Hyderabad, Telangana, 500004
I have conducted the Secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited
(L01222TG1992PLC014173) (hereinafter called “the company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. This Report is to be read with the letter of even date
which is annexed to this as ‘Annexure-1’ and forms an integral part of this report.
Based on my verification of the Companies books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, physically and
remotely, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the
financial year  ended on March 31, 2025, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent,
in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
1. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the
provisions of:
i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and the rules and regulations made

there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and
External Commercial Borrowings (No provisions were attracted during the period under
review)

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):-
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Complied with yearly and event-based
disclosures, wherever applicable.
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(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 as amended including the SDD compliance; The Company has
framed code of conduct for regulating & reporting trading by insiders and for fair
disclosure and displayed the same on the Company’s website i.e., https://
www.narbadajewellery.com

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 as amended; Not Applicable to the Company
during the period under review

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations,2021;Not Applicable to the Company during the period
under review.

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Company’s shares and dealing
with its members;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period end .

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
2021; Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period.

(h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations 2021; Not applicable to the Company for the period under
review.

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 as amended.

2. Compliance of the other Laws applicable specifically to the Company as reported by the Company
and test checked.
i. Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
ii. Professional Tax Act, 1975 and Rules
iii. Minimum Wages Act, 1948
iv. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
v. Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
vi. Factories Act, 1948
vii. The Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923
viii. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936
ix. Standard Weights & Measures Act
x. Bureau of Indian Standard (BIS) (Hallmarking)

3. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
ii. SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations 2015 as amended.
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4. During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:.

Sr. Compliance Requirement (Regulations/ Deviations Observations
No. circulars/guidelines including specific clause) /Remarks
1 NIL NA NIL

5. The Company has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous
reports:

Sr. Observations Observations made in the Actions taken by Comments of the
No. of the secretarial compliance report the listed entity, Practicing Company

Practicing for the year ended 31.03.2025. if any Secretary on the
Company actions taken by the
Secretary in listed entity
the previous
reports

1 NIL NIL NIL -

I further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by
the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by the
Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.
I further report that
• The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.
• Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

• Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 06.08.2025

Sd/-
AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA

FCS No.: 3489
C.P. No.: 3479

UDIN: F003489G000942031
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Annexure - I
To,
The Members,
Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited
1st Floor, 3-6-307/1, 3-6-307/2, 3-6-308/1,
Hyderguda Main Road, Opp Bikanerwala, Basheer Bagh,
 Hyderabad, Telangana, 500004

This letter is to be read with the report even date and forms an integral part of this report for the
year ended on 31.03.2025.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit, remote
as well as physical, as possible.

2. I have followed the basic audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that
the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of
procedures and transparency, on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA
FCS No.: 3489
C P No.: 3479

UDIN: F003489G000942031
Place: Hyderabad
Date:  06.08.2025
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ANNEXURE- II

SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT OF NARBADA GEMS AND
JEWELLERY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

[Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended.]

To,
The Members
NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED
1st Floor, 3-6-307/1, 3-6-307/2, 3-6-308/1,
Hyderguda Main Road, Simple Natural Systems,
Basheer Bagh, Hyderabad- 500 004.

I have conducted the review of the compliance of the applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Narbada Gems & Jewellery Limited (“the listed entity/ NGJL”), (having
BSE Scrip Code – 519455 and CIN: L01222TG1992PLC014173), having registered office at 1st Floor,
3-6-307/1, 3-6-307/2, 3-6-308/1,Hyderguda Main Road, Simple Natural Systems, Basheer Bagh,
Hyderabad.  The Secretarial Review was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the listed entity’s books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by NGJL and also the information provided by NGJL, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Review, we hereby report that in our
opinion, NGJL has, during the review period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that NGJL has proper Board processes
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I, CS. Ajay Suman Shrivastava, have examined:
a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanations provided by Narbada

Gems & Jewellery Limited (“NGJL / the listed entity”)
b) the filings/ submissions made by the NGJL to the stock exchanges,
c) website of NGJL,
d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this

certification,
for the year ended 31st March, 2025 (“Review Period”) in respect of compliance with the provisions of:
a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) and the Regulations, circulars,

guidelines issued thereunder; and
b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”), rules made thereunder and the

Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (“SEBI”);
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The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have
been examined, include:-
a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 as amended;
b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2018 as amended to the extent applicable during the period under review;
c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 2011, as applicable;
d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 - (Not

applicable to the Company during the period under review);
e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)

Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the period under review);
f) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)

Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the Company during the period under review);
g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 to

the extent applicable during the year under review;
h) other regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder; (as applicable)
and based on the above examination, I hereby report that, during the Review Period the compliance
status of NGJL is appended as below:
I. (a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/

guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:
Sr. Com- lation/ Deviat- Acti Type Details Fine Obser Manage- Re
no. pliance Circular ions on of of Amount vations ment marks

Require- No. taken Action Violat- Remark Resp-
ment by ions of the onse
(Regu- Practi-
lations/ cing
circulars/ Comp
guide- any
lines Secre-
including tary
specific
clause)

NIL during the Review Period

(b) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous
reports:
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Sr. Com- lation/ Deviat- Acti Type Details Fine Obser Manage- Re
no. pliance Circular ions on of of Amount vations ment marks

Require- No. taken Action Violat- Remark Resp-
ment by ions of the onse
(Regu- Practi-
lations/ cing
circulars/ Comp
guide- any
lines Secre-
including tary
specific
clause)

NIL during the Review Period

II. The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/
guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:-

Sr. Particulars Compliance Observations/
no. Status Remarks by

(Yes/No/NA) PCS*
1. Secretarial Standards: Yes NIL

The compliances of the listed entity are in
accordance with the applicable Secretarial
Standards (SS) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

2. Adoption and timely updation of the Policies:
• All applicable policies under SEBI Yes NIL

Regulations are adopted with the approval
of board of directors of the listed entities

• All the policies are in conformity with SEBI Yes NIL
Regulations and have been reviewed &
updated on time, as per the regulations/
circulars/ guidelines issued by SEBI

3. Maintenance and disclosures on Website:
• The listed entity is maintaining a functional Yes NIL

website
• Timely dissemination of the documents/ Yes NIL

information under a separate section
on the website

• Web-links provided in annual corporate Yes NIL
governance reports under Regulation 27(2)
are accurate and specific which re- directs
to the relevant document(s)/ section of
the website
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4. Disqualification of Director:
None of the Director(s) of the Company is/ are Yes NIL
disqualified under Section 164 of Companies Act,
2013 as confirmed by the listed entity.

5. Details related to Subsidiaries of listed
entities have been examined w.r.t.:
(a) Identification of material subsidiary NA No such subsidiary

companies exists
(b) Disclosure requirement of material as NA

well as other subsidiaries
6. Preservation of Documents:

The listed entity is preserving and maintaining Yes NIL
records as prescribed under SEBI Regulations
and disposal of records as per Policy of
Preservation of Documents and Archival policy
prescribed under SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015.

7. Performance Evaluation:
The listed entity has conducted performance Yes NIL
evaluation of the Board, Independent Directors
and the Committees at the start of every financial
year/during the financial year as prescribed in
SEBI Regulations.

8. Related Party Transactions:
(a) The listed entity has obtained prior Yes NIL

approval of Audit Committee for all related
party transactions; or

(b) The listed entity has provided detailed NA No RPT were rejected
reasons along with confirmation whether at any time since all
the transactions were subsequently have Shareholders
approved/ratified/rejected by the Audit approval.
Committee, in case no prior approval
has been obtained.

9. Disclosure of events or information:
The listed entity has provided all the required Yes NIL
disclosure(s) under Regulation 30 along with
Schedule III of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015
within the time limits prescribed thereunder.

10. Prohibition of Insider Trading:
The listed entity is in compliance with Yes NIL
Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.
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11. Actions taken by SEBI or Stock
Exchange(s), if any:
No action(s) has been taken against the listed NIL No such instances of
entity/ its promoters/ directors/ subsidiaries either non-compliance or
by SEBI or by Stock Exchanges (including under delay resulting in
the Standard Operating Procedures issued by penalty have been
SEBI through various circulars) under SEBI observed for
Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued compliances during
thereunder except as provided under separate the year.
paragraph herein (**) or
The action taken against the listed entity/its NIL
promoters/directors/subsidiaries either by SEBI
or by stock exchange are specified in the
last column

12. Resignation of statutory auditors from the NIL No such instances of
listed company or its material subsidiaries: any resignation has
In case of Resignation of statutory auditor from occurred during the
the listed entity or any of its material subsidiaries review period.
during the financial year, the listed entity and/or
its material subsidiary(ies) has/have complied
with paragraph 6.1 and 6.2 of section V-D of
chapter V of the master circular on compliance
with the provisions of the LODR regulations
by listed entities.

13. Additional Non-compliances, if any: NIL No such instances of
No additional non-compliance observed for any non-compliance or
SEBI regulation/circular/guidance note etc. delay resulting in

penalty have been
observed for
compliances during
the year.

Note : The Company has maintained the Structural Digital Database (SDD) in accordance with the
SEBI- PIT Regulations 2015 as amended.

We further report that the Company has complied with the requirements of Regulations 37 of SEBI-
LODR 2015 as amended with respect to the scheme of Amalgamation with Uday Jewellery Industries
Limited and the BSE No Objection dated 20th March was received. The Company has filed the First
Motion application before the National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench and has been heard
on 8th May, 2025.



NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED

52

We further, report that the listed entity is in compliance/not in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of Employee Benefit Scheme Documents in terms of regulation 46(2)(za) of the LODR Regulations:
NA

Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review:

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information
furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity.

2. Our responsibility is to certify based upon our examination of relevant documents and information.
This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial Records and Books of
Accounts of the listed entity.

4. This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is neither
an assurance as to the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the listed entity.

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 26.05.2025

AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA
FCS No.: 3489
C.P. No.: 3479

UDIN: F003489G000417925
Peer Review Cert No: 20292022
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ANNEXURE - III
FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms
length transactions under third proviso thereto:
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: Not Applicable

as all the Related Party Transactions have been entered into at an arm’s length basis.
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
Sl.No. Particulars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party i. Sanghi Jewellers Private Limited

& nature of relationship Company having common directors
ii. Uday Jewellery Industries Limited

Company having common directors
iii. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi

Managing Director
iv. Ritesh Kumar Sanghi

Director
v. Bhavna Sanghi

Director
vi. Pritha Sanghi

Relative of Directors
vii) Uday Sanghi

Relative of Directors
viii) Tejas Sanghi

Relative of Directors
ix) Sakshi Sanghi

Relative of Directors
(x) Bajranglal Agrawal

CFO
b) Nature of contracts/ i. Purchases and sales of manufactured products,

arrangements/transaction job work services.
ii. Purchase and sale of manufactured products.

c) Duration of the contracts/ i. Regular
arrangements/transaction ii. Yearly

d) Salient terms of the contracts During the year 2024-25 the total value of transactions
or arrangements or transaction with the related parties are as follows:
including the value, if any I. Sanghi Jewellers Private Limited

Purchases: Rs. 11,95,46,000/- only
Payment of Rent: Rs. 32,40,000/-only

II. Uday Jewellery Industries Limited
Purchases: Rs. 86,02,000/- only
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III. Ritesh Kumar Sanghi
Payment of Rent Rs.15,00,000/-

IV. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi
Payment of Rent Rs.15,00,000/-

V. Pritha Sanghi
Payment of Rent Rs. 15,00,000/-

VI. Bhavna Sanghi
Payment of Rent Rs. 15,00,000/-

VII. Uday Sanghi
Payment of Rent Rs. 15,00,000/-

VIII. Tejas Sanghi
Payment of Rent Rs. 15,00,000/-
Total Payment of Rent- Rs.90,00,000/-

IX. Remuneration paid to Relative of KMP:
Tejas Sanghi Rs. 54,00,000/-
Sakshi Sanghi Rs.  42,00,000/-

e) Date of approval by Approval of Board is taken as and when required.
the Board Transactions with Related Companies are as per

Shareholders approval.
f) Amount paid as advances,

if any --

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Sd/- Sd/-

(Sanjay Kumar Sanghi) (Ritesh Kumar Sanghi)
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Director
Date: 09-08-2025 DIN: 00629693 DIN: 00628033
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
The Corporate Governance Report of Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited (“the Company”/“NGJL”)
for the Financial Year (“FY”) 2024-25, which forms part of Boards’ Report, has been prepared in
compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance norms as prescribed under Regulation 34
read with Chapter IV and Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). This report provides a
comprehensive overview of the corporate governance systems and processes at NGJL.
1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

Certainly! Here are the key points distilled from the provided text:
• Commitment to Corporate Governance: The Company believes effective corporate governance

is foundational to long-term business success.
• Oversight and Accountability: Corporate governance involves overseeing business strategies,

ensuring fiscal accountability, and upholding ethical behavior.
• Fairness to Stakeholders: The Company is dedicated to fairness towards employees, investors,

customers, regulators, suppliers, and society.
• Ethical Values and Standards: The Board of Directors upholds high moral standards and ethical

values to achieve top-notch corporate governance.
• Professional Conduct: The Company recognizes that its success reflects the ethical conduct of

its management and employees.
• Proactive Approach: The Company is committed to proactively following good corporate

governance practices.
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:
(a) Composition of the Board:

The composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of Regulation 17 of SEBI
Listing Regulations read with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), as amended
from time to time.
The Company’s Board consists of Six (6) directors as on March 31, 2025. Out of Six (6) directors,
One (1) director is Executive Director, three (3) directors are Non-Executive Independent Directors
and two (2) are Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors. This composition represents an
optimal balance of professionalism, knowledge and experience and enables the Board to
discharge its responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business.
Further the board after 31st March 2025 and before this board report at its meeting held on 09th
august 2025 appointed Mr. Dileep Kumar Jain as an additional independent director of the
company subject to the approval of the members of the company in ensuing AGM. The names
and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings held during
the year and at the last Annual General Meeting and also the number of other directorships and
committee memberships held by them as required under Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations,
as at March 31, 2025 are given hereunder:
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Name of Directors Category No. of Attendance No. of                        No. of Directorship
Board at the last Director                  Committee in other

Meetings AGM held ships held                    positions Listed Entity
held during on30tht in other                          held** and Category
the Year September, Companies  of
2024-25 2024 Directorship

Held Attended Chairman Member
Sanjay Kumar Managing 7 7 Yes 4 1 - 1
Sanghi Director/ Non -

Chairman- Executive
Executive Director
Director

Ritesh kumar Non- 7 7 Yes 5 - - 1-
Sanghi Executive Executive

Non- Director
Independent
Director

Mr. Ramprasad Non- 7 4 - 2 2 2 1-Non
Vempati Executive Executive
(resigned w.e.f Independent Independent
31/08/2024) Director
Mr. Siddharth Non- 7 3 - 3 1 2 1-Non
Goel (resiged Executive Executive
w.e.f 31/08/2024) Independent Independent

Director
Vikram Goel Non- 7 4 - 3 1 2 1-Non
(Appointed Executive Executive
w.e.f 31/08/2024) Independent Independent

Director
Balasubramanyam Non- 7 4      Yes 2 1 2 1-Non
Danturti Executive Executive
(Appointed Independent Independent
w.e.f 31/08/2024) Director
Sunil Garg Non- 7 6 - 1 1 3 1-Non

Executive Executive
Independent Independent
Director

Bhavna Sanghi Non- 7 7 - 2 - 1 1-Non
Executive Executive
Non- Director
Independent
Director
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Further on 31.08.2024 following changes took place in the Board Composition:
S. NO. NAME of Directors DESIGNATION Changes
1 Mr. Ramprasad Vempati Independent Directors Resigned
2 Mr. Siddharth Goel Independent Directors Resigned
3 Mr. Vikarm Goel Independent Directors Appointed
4 Mr. Balasubramanyam Danturti Independent Directors Appointed

Notes:
1. **Memberships/Chairmanships of committee includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders

Committee of other listed entities
The number of Directorship(s) and Committee Membership(s) / Chairmanship(s) of all Directors
is within the limits as prescribed under the Act and the Listing Regulations.None of the Directors
on the Board is a member of more than 10 committees or Chairman of more than 5 committees
across all the Companies in which he is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding committee
positions in other Public Companies as at March 31, 2025 has been made by the Directors.
The Board as part of its succession planning exercise periodically reviews its composition to
ensure that the same is closely aligned with the strategy and long-term needs of the Company.

(b) Number of meetings of the Board of Directors held and dates on which held:
The Board of Directors must meet at least four times a year, with a maximum time gap of 120
days between two Board meetings. The Board of Directors met Seven times during the year
under review i.e., on 28.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 24.08.2024, 31.08.2024, 16.09.2024 , 14.11.2024
and 13.02.2025. The requisite quorum was present for all the Meetings.

(c) Disclosure of relationships between Directors:
• Mr. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi (Managing Director) and Mr. Ritesh Kumar Sanghi (Director) are

Siblings.
• Mr. Ritesh Kumar Sanghi is the Spouse of Mrs. Bhavna Sanghi.
Except as mentioned above, none of the Directors are related to each other.
(d) Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non- Executive Directors as on

March 31, 2025:
SI. Name of the Director Category No. of Equity No. of
No Shares held Convertible

Warrantsheld
1. Ritesh Kumar Sanghi Non-Executive 25,08,499 NIL

Non-Independent
Director

2. Ramprasad Vempati Non-Executive Independent
Resigned w.e.f Director NIL NIL
31.08.2024
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3. Siddharth Goel Non-Executive NIL NIL
Resigned w.e.f Independent
31.08.2024 Director

4. Mr. Vikarm Goel Non-Executive NIL NIL
Appointed w,e,f Independent
31.08.2024 Director

5. Mr. Balasubramanyam Non-Executive NIL NIL
Danturti (appointed w.e.f Independent
31.08.2024) Director

6. Sunil Garg Non-Executive Independent NIL NIL
Director

7. Bhavna Sanghi Non-Executive
Non-Independent
Director 16,39,200 NIL

(e) Web-link where details of Familiarization Programmes imparted to Independent Directors
is disclosed: https://narbadajewellery.com/investor-relations/

(f) Core skills / Expertise / Competencies of the Board of Directors:
The Board comprises qualified and experienced members who possess required skills, expertise
and competencies that allow them to make effective contributions to the Board and its Committees.
The following skills / expertise / competencies have been identified for the effective functioning
of the Company and are currently available with the Board:

• Strategy and Transformation
• Finance
• Corporate Governance
• Leadership
• Legal/ Regulatory
The table below summarizes the skills, expertise and competencies possessed by the Board of Directors
of the Company:

Name of the Strategy & Finance & Corporate Leadership Legal/
Directors Transformation Accounting Governance Regulatory
Sanjay Kumar Sanghi � � � � �

Ritesh Kumar Sanghi � � � � �

Mr. Vikarm Goel � - � � -
Mr. Balasubramanyam � - - - -
Sunil Garg � � � � -
Bhavna Sanghi � � � � -
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(g) Confirmation on Independent Directors:
• In the opinion of the Board, all the Non-Executive Independent Directors of the Company fulfil

the conditions as specified under SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 and the Companies Act, 2013
and they are independent of the management.

• Independent Directors have submitted requisite declarations confirming that they continue to
meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation
16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Further, they have confirmed their compliance with
Rule 6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
as amended, by registering their names in the Independent Directors' database maintained by
the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs.

(h) Detailed reasons for the resignation of an Independent Director:
During the year Mr. Ramprasad Vempati and Mr. Siddharth Goel, Independent Directors of the
company resigned w.e.f 31.08.2024 due to Pre occupation.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
The Audit Committee of the Company was constituted in line with the provisions as contemplated
under Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The Audit Committee is entrusted with the responsibility of supervising internal controls,
financial reporting process and ensures adequate, accurate and timely disclosures that maintain
the transparency, integrity and quality of financial control and reporting.

(a) Brief description of terms of reference:
The terms of reference and the powers and role of the Audit Committee are set out in Section
177(4) of the Act and Regulation 18(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. Matters deliberated
upon and reviewed by the Committee include:

1. Oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of statutory and
internal auditors of the listed entity;

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon

before submission to the board for approval, focusing primarily on:
i. matters required to be included in the Directors Responsibility Statement included in the

Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of Section134 of the Companies
Act, 2013;

ii. changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
iii. major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by

management;
iv. significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings, if

any;
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v. compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
vi. disclosure of any related party transactions and;
vii. modified opinion(s) in draft audit report, if any.

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
board for approval;

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public issue or
rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions placement and making appropriate
recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;

7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties;
9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;
11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of

the internal control systems;
13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal

audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of internal audit;

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the board;

16. Discussion with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;
19. Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience

and background, etc. of the candidate;
20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee;
21. Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in

the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever
is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of coming into
force of this provision;
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22. Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders;

23. Reviewing the management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of
operations;

24. Reviewing the management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory
auditors;

25. Reviewing the internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
26. Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor

shall be subject to review by the audit committee.
27. Reviewing the statement of deviations:

(i) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable,
submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).

(ii) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

In addition to the above, the Committee reviews the management discussion and analysis,
statement of related party transactions, including granting omnibus approvals, internal audit
reports relating to observations on internal control, etc.

(b) Composition, name of members and Chairperson:
As on March 31, 2025 the Company’s Audit Committee comprises of three Non-Executive
Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Non-Executive Independent
Director. The below table presents the composition, name of members and chairperson of the
Audit Committee:

SI. Name of the Designation of Position in
No. Director the Director the Committee
1. Mr. Sunil Garg Independent Director Chairman
2. Mr. Vikarm Goel Independent Director Member
3. Mr. Balasubramanyam Independent Director Member

In pursuance, to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing
Regulations, the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and have related financial
management expertise by virtue of their experience and background.

(c) Meetings and attendance during the year:
During the year 2024-25, the Audit Committee met Six (6) times on 28.05.2024, 13.08.2024,
31.08.2024, 16.09.2024, 14.11.2024 and 13.02.2025. The necessary quorum was present for
all the meetings.The Audit Committee invites such of the executives, as it considers appropriate,
such as Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors, and Chief Financial Officer to be present at its
meetings. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Audit Committee.
The attendance of the committee members at the meetings of the Audit Committee held during
the year is given below:
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SI. Name and Designation of                   Meetings held during the Year 2024-25
No Committee Members 28-05-2024 13-08-2024 31-08-2024 16-09-2024 14-11-2024 13.02.2025
1 Mr. Ramprasad Vempati

Resigned we.f 31.08.2024 � � - - -
2 Mr.Siddharth Goel

Resigned we.f 31.08.2024 � � - - -
3 Mr. Vikarm Goel

Appointed we.f 31.08.2024 - - - � � �

4 Mr. Balasubramanyam Danturti
Appointed we.f 31.08.2024 - - - � � �

5 Mr. Sunil Garg � LOA � � �

� -  Attended
LOA   - Leave of Absence

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the
provisions as contemplated under Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) Brief description of terms of reference:
The broad terms of reference and role of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall
inter-alia include the following:

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the remuneration of
the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of
directors.

3. Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors.
4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior

management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board of directors
their appointment and removal.

5. Whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis
of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

6. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management.
(b) Composition, name of members and Chairperson:

As on March 31, 2025 the Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of
three Non-Executive Independent Directors. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is Non-Executive Independent Director. The below table presents the composition,
name of members and chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
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S. Name of the Director Designation of the Director Position in the
No. Committee
1. Mr. Vikram Goel Independent Director Chairman
2. Mr. Balasubramanyam Danturti Independent Director Member
3. Mr. Sunil Garg Independent Director Member

(c) Meeting and attendance during the year:
During the year 2024-25 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met One (1) time
31.08.2024. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. The Company Secretary
acts as the secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The attendance of the
members of the Committee is given below:

S. Name and Designation Meetings held during the Year 2024-25
No of Committee Members 31-08-2024
1 Mr. Ramprasad Vempati

Resigned w.e.f 31.08.2024 �

2 Mr. Siddharth Goel
Resigned w.e.f 31.08.2024 �

3 Mr. Vikram Goel
Appointed w.e.f 31.08.2024 -

4  Mr. Balasubramanyam    Danturti
Appointed w.e.f 31.08.2024 -

5 Mr. Sunil Garg LOA
     �  -  Attended  LOA   -  Leave of Absence

(d) Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors:
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company
has put in place the criteria for annual evaluation of performance of Chairperson, Individual
Directors (Independent & Non – Independent), Board Level Committees and the Board as a
whole.
During the year under review, Board evaluated the effectiveness of its functioning and that of
Committees and of Individual Directors (Independent and Non – Independent) by seeking their
inputs on various aspects of Board/Committee Governance. Performance evaluation was made
on the basis of structured questionnaire considering the indicative criteria as prescribed by the
Evaluation Policy of the Company. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors
was carried out by the entire Board excluding the director being evaluated.
The Independent Directors of the Company are evaluated based on various criteria such as
Qualifications, Experience, Knowledge and Competency, Fulfillment of functions, Ability to function
as a team, Initiative, Availability and attendance, Commitment, Contribution, Integrity,
Independence and Independent views and judgement.
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5. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions
as contemplated under Regulation 20 of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) Name of the Non-executive Director heading the committee:
As on March 31, 2025 the Company’s Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises of
three Non-Executive Independent Directors. The Committee is headed by Mr. Balasubramanyam
Danturti, Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company w.e.f 31.08.2024. The Committee
looks into transfer and transmission, issue of duplicate share certificates, consolidation and
sub-division of shares and investors grievances. The committee oversees the performance of
the Registrars and Shares Transfer Agents and recommends measures for overall improvement
in the quality of investor services.

The below table presents the composition, name of members and chairperson of theStakeholders’
Relationship Committee:

S. No. Name of the Director Designation of the Director Position in the Committee
1. Mr. Balasubramanyam Danturti Independent Director Chairman
2. Mr. Vikram Goel Independent Director Member
3. Mr. Sunil Garg Independent Director Member

Terms of reference: The broad terms of reference and role of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
shall inter-alia include the following:

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related
to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends,
issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum
of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory
notices by the shareholders of the Company.

Meeting and attendance: During the year 2024-25 the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met
two (2) times on 26.04.2024 and 28.03.2025. The necessary quorum was present for the meeting. The
Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The attendance
of the members of the Committee is given below:
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SI. Name and Designation   Meeting held during the Year 2024-25
No of Committee Members 26.04.2024 28.03.2025
1 Mr. Siddharth Goel

Resigned w.e.f 31.08.2024 � -
2 Mr. Ramprasad Vempati

Resigned w.e.f 31.08.2024 � -
3 Mr. Sunil Garg � �

4 Mr.  Balasubramanyam Danturti
Appointed w.e.f 31.08.2024 - �

5 Mr. Vikram Goel 31.08.2024 - �

�  Attended   LOA   -  Leave of Absence

(b) Number of shareholders’ complaints received during the financial year:
The total number of complaints received and redressed during the FY 2024-25 is as follow:

Opening Received during Resolved during Closing
Balance the year the year Balance

0 0 0 0
(c) Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders:

There was no pending complaint which was not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders as on
March 31, 2025.

(d) Number of pending complaints:
There was no pending complaint as on March 31, 2025.

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMIITTEE
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the
provisions as contemplated under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) Name of the Non-executive Director heading the committee:
As on March 31, 2025 the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility Committee comprises of
one Non-Executive Independent Director, one Non-Executive Non-Independent Director and
one executive director. The Committee is headed by Mr. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi, Managing Director
of the Company. The Committee Recommends the amount of expenditure to be incurred on
CSR activities and Monitors the implementation of CSR projects or programs undertaken by the
Company, ensuring that CSR activities are undertaken in accordance with the CSR Policy and
are aligned with Schedule VII of the Companies Act,2013.
The below table presents the composition, name of members and chairperson of the Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee:
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S. Name of the Director Designation of the Director Position in the Committee
No.
1. Mr. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi Managing  Director Chairman
2. Mr. Sunil Garg Independent Director Member
3. Mrs. Bhavna Sanghi Non Executive Director Member

(b) Terms of reference: The broad terms of reference and role of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee shall inter-alia include the following:

• Identify CSR projects and programs in line with the activities specified in Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013.

• Monitor the implementation of CSR projects and ensure they are executed as per the approved
CSR policy.

• Ensure that CSR activities are carried out through eligible entities as per the CSR Rules, if
outsourced.

• Review and modify the CSR Policy from time to time based on statutory requirements and
social priorities.

• Submit periodic reports to the Board on the status of CSR activities and utilization of funds.
• Ensure that the Company spends at least 2% of its average net profits of the preceding three

financial years on CSR activities.
(c) Meeting and attendance during the year:

During the year 2024-25 the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met One (1) time
31.03.2025. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.. The attendance of the
members of the Committee is given below:

S. Name and Designation of Meetings held during the Year 2024-25
No. Committee Members 31.03.2025
1 Mr. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi �

2 Mr. Sunil Garg �

3 Mrs. Bhavna Sanghi �

� -  Attended  LOA   -  Leave of Absence
7. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:
(a) All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-à-vis the listed entity:

Remuneration paid/payable to Non-Executive Directors:
The Non-executive Directors do not have any pecuniary relationship or transactions of the
Company.
Service Contracts, Severance Fees and Notice Period The tenure of the office of Managing
Director and Whole Time Directors is 5 (five) years from respective dates of their appointment
and the notice period for terminating the service contract of Managing Director and Whole-time
Director is based on Company’s HR Policy. Further, there is no separate provision for payment
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of severance fees. None of the Executive Directors had been granted any Employee Stock
Options of the Company. As required under the Listing Regulations, the Company has taken a
Directors and Officers Liability Insurance (D&O) on behalf of all Directors including Independent
Directors of the Company.

8. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
(a) Information of last three Annual General Meetings (AGM’s) Held:
(b)

Year Venue Day Date Time
32nd AGM Deemed to be at Registered Office held Monday September 3.30 PM
2023-24  through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other 30,2024

Audio-Visual Means (OAVM).
31st AGM Deemed to be at Registered Office held Thursday September 03.30 PM
2022-23 through Video Conferencing (VC)/Other 21,2023

Audio-Visual Means (OAVM).
30th AGM Deemed to be at Registered Office held
2021-22 through Video Conferencing (VC)/ September 26,

Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM). Monday 2022 03:00 PM

(c) Details of the Special Resolutions passed last year through Postal Ballot – Details of
Voting Pattern:
(1) There were no resolutions passed by the Company through Postal Ballot during the

financial year 2024-25.
(2) Whether any Special Resolution is proposed to be conducted through Postal Ballot:

There is no immediate proposal for passing any special resolution through postal ballot.
(3) Procedure for Postal Ballot:
The postal ballot was carried out as per the provisions of Sections 108 and 110 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Rules framed thereunder and
read with the General Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020
and subsequent circulars issued in this regard, the latest being 9/2023 dated September 25,
2023, respectively as amended from time to time issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and
SEBI Listing Regulations in this regard.

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
Your Company follows various channels of communication with shareholders and other
stakeholders for ensuring fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of the
Company’s performance and activities to safeguard shareholders’ and other stakeholders
interests.
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(a) Financial Results and newspapers wherein the results are published:
The quarterly/half yearly/annual financial results, notices of General Meetings and all other
material information are normally announced by the Companywithin the timeline prescribed
under the SEBI Listing Regulations and are published by the Company in the leading newspapers
like the Financial Express (English) and Namasthe Telangana (Telugu) Hyderabad – Local.
The financial results and the other important information to shareholders are placed at Company’s
websitehttps://narbadajewellery.com/quarterly-results/and are disclosed to the stock exchanges
where the shares of the Company are listed.

(b) Company’s Website:
The Company has a dedicated “Investors” section on its website viz., https://
narbadajewellery.com/, wherein relevant member information such as Board committee,
corporate policy, Annual Report, financial results, shareholding details etc. are accessible.

(c) Annual Report:
The Annual Report of the Company is circulated to the members and others entitled thereto.
The Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) Report, Corporate Governance Report forms
part of the Annual Report.

(d) Presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts:
During the year 2024-25, no specific presentations were made to institutional investors or to the
analysts.

(e) SCORES (SEBI Complaints Redressal System):
SEBI has provided a centralized web-based complaints redressal system named, SCORES,
enabling investors to lodge complaint(s) against a Company for any grievance. The Company is
registered on SCORES Platform.

(f) Green Initiative – Service of Documents in Electronic Form:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has taken a “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance”
by allowing paperless compliance by Companies through electronic mode. In accordance with
circulars issued by the Ministry, Companies can now send various notices and documents
including annual report, to its shareholders through electronic mode to the registered e-mail
addresses of shareholders. To support this green initiative of the Government in full measurethe
Company has adopted the practice of sending communications, including Annual Report, through
email to those members whose email addresses are available as per registered records.

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:
a. Annual General Meeting - Date: September 30, 2025

Date, Time and Venue Time: 01.00 P.M
Venue: Meeting shall be conducted through VC/OAVM.
The deemed venue shall be at the Registered Office:
1st Floor, 3-6-307/1, 3-6-307/2, 3-6-308/1,
Hyderguda Main Road, Simple Natural Systems,
Basheerbagh, Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 500004

b. Financial Year April 1, 2024 to March 31,2025
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c. Dividend Payment Date NA
d. Book Closure Date 24th September, 2025 to 30th September, 2025

Name and address of each stock 1. Name: BSE Limited (BSE)
exchange(s) at which the listed Address: Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street,
entity's securities are listed and Mumbai – 400 001
a confirmation about payment of The Company has paid its annual listing fees to the
annual listing fee to each of Stock Exchangewhere the shares of the Company
such stock exchange(s) are listed for the FY 2024-25 and 2025-26.

e. Stock Code BSE Scrip Code    –     519455

f. Market price data – High/Low price during each month in last financial year:
Month Open Price High Price Low Price Close Price No. of Shares

(in Rs.) (in Rs.) (in Rs.) (in Rs.) Traded
Apr-24 65.9 76 62.09 72.4 62826
May-24 70.95 74.99 58.21 58.21 48704
Jun-24 55.3 64.3 52.4 55.91 87193
Jul-24 56.32 60.38 51.06 54.98 87352
Aug-24 54.98 89.93 51.06 76.91 567720
Sep-24 77.3 81 63.27 73.65 267909
Oct-24 75.86 82 62.5 72.41 299559
Nov-24 77.7 77.7 55.15 65 77577
Dec-24 64 75 62.07 64.5 99713
Jan-25 64.42 70.99 55 62.5 42668
Feb-25 60.1 66 48.82 58.32 55730
Mar-25 57.15 59 48.05 50.14 54838

Share Price movement during 2024-25
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g. Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex:
(1) Performance of share price of the Company in comparison to BSE Sensex:

Month BSE SENSEX Closing Price (Rs.) NGJL Closing Price at BSE (Rs.)
Apr-24 74482.78 72.4
May-24 73961.31 58.21
June-24 79032.73 55.91
July-24 81741.34 54.98
Aug-24 82365.77 76.91
Sep-24 84299.78 73.65
Oct-24 79389.06 72.41
Nov-24 79802.79 65
Dec-24 78139.01 64.5
Jan-25 77500.57 62.5
Feb-25 73198.1 58.32
Mar-25 77414.92 50.14

h. In case the securities are The Securities of the Company have not been suspended
suspended from trading if any: from trading at any time during the financial year

ended March 31, 2025.
i. Registrar to an issue and During the year, there was no change in the Registrar and Share

share transfer agents: Transfer Agent of the Company.
CIL Securities Limited
208, Raghava Ratna Towers, Chirag Ali Lane,
Abids Hyderabad 500001
Phone:040-23202465;
Fax:010-23203028
Email: rta@cilsecurities.com
Website: www.cilsecurities.com
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j. Share Transfer System The share transfers are being dealt by the Company's Registrars
and Transfer Agents (RTA), M/s.CIL Securities Limited,
registered with SEBI.
In terms of the amended Regulation 40(1) of Listing Regulations
w.e.f. April 01, 2019, securities of the listed Companies shall be
processed only in those cases where the shares are held in
dematerialized form with the depository, in terms of guidelines
issued by SEBI. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/
MIRSD_ TAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022, SEBI
has mandated Listed Companies to issue securities in
dematerialized form only while processing investor service
request viz transmission, transposition, renewal, exchange, sub-
division, consolidation and issue of duplicate certificates etc.
the securities shall be issued in dematerialized form only.
Accordingly, the shares held in physical form will not be
transferred unless they are converted into dematerialized form.

k. (1) Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2025:
Category Number of % of total Number of % of total
( No. of shares) holders holders shares shares
Upto500 6614 92.53 891811 4.22
501-1000 321 4.49 221671 1.05
1001-2000 113 1.58 152980 0.72
2001-3000 26 0.36 64057 0.30
3001-4000 7 0.10 25480 0.12
4001-5000 7 0.10 32854 0.16
5001-10000 15 0.21 1,22330 0.58
10001andabove 45 0.63 19646127 93.86
Total 7148 100 2,11,57,310 100

2. Shareholding Pattern of NGJL as on March 31,2025
Particulars No. of No. of Shareholding

Shareholders Shares %
Promoter and Promoter Group 11 1,58,64,824 74.99
Public 7063 52,92,486 25.01
Total 7,074 2,11,57,310 100
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(2) DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY:
The Company’s shares are available for trading in both “National Securities Depository Limited”
and “Central Depository Services (India) Limited”. As on 31stMarch, 2025, below are the following
details.

Particulars No. of Shares %  Share Capital
CDSL 1,69,15,548 79.95
NSDL 34,23,672 16.18
Physical 8,18,090 3.87
Total 2,11,57,310 100.00

n. Commodity price risk or foreign Not Applicable to the Company
exchange risk and hedging activities:

p. Address for correspondence:
S.No. Shareholders Correspondence for Address to
1. Transfer/Dematerialization/ CIL Securities Limited

consolidation/split of shares, issue of 208, Raghava Ratna Towers,
Duplicate share certificates, change Chirag Ali Lane, Abids Hyderabad 500001
of address of members and beneficial Phone:040-23202465;
owners and any other query relating Fax:010-23203028
to the shares of the Company. Email: rta@cilsecurities.com

Website: www.cilsecurities.com
2. Investor Correspondence/queries on COMPANY SECRETARY

Corporate Governance and M/s. Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited.
other secretarial matters. Address: 1st Floor, 3-6-307/1, 3-6-307/2,

3-6-308/1,Hyderguda Main Road, Simple
Natural Systems, Basheer Bagh,
Hyderabad, Telangana, 500004.
Email: comsec@narbadajewellery.com

q. Credit Rating:
During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company obtained credit ratings from
ICRA Limited for its bank loan facilities, details of which are given below:

S.No. Instrument Type Previous Rating Current Rating Rating Agencies
1. Long Term CRISIL BB+/ ICRA] BBB- (Rating Watch ICRA

Rating/Short Stable with Developing Implications)/ Limited
Term Rating (Reaffirmed) [ICRA] A3 Rating Watch with

Developing Implications;
Assigned

11. OTHER DISCLOSURES:
(a) Disclosures on materially significant Related Party Transactions that may have potential

conflict with the interests of listed entity at large;
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During the FY 2024-25, all the Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company were in
the ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis and were approved by the members
of Audit Committee, comprising majority of Independent Directors.
The Company does not have any materially significant Related Party Transaction that may
have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The Company complies with
the disclosure requirements as prescribed in Regulation 23 of Listing Regulations pertaining to
Related Party Transactions (“RPT”). Details of RPT’s are informed to the Board on a quarterly
basis along with financial results.
Further, the Company at the Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2024, has obtained
members approval to enter into Material Related Party Transaction(s) with Sanghi Jewellers
Private Limited and Uday Jewellery Industries Ltd. This approval pertains to the Purchase/ sale
of various manufactured products and availing Jobwork services, at prevailing market rates and
on arm’s length basis up to an amount of Rs. 50 crores and with Uday Jewellery Industries to
Sale/ purchase of various manufactured products, at prevailing market rates and on arm’s length
basis up to an amount of Rs. 50 crores.
Your Company has formulated a Policy on materiality of Related Party Transactions and also
dealing with Related Party Transaction. The policy on the Related Party Transactions is hosted
on the Company’s website https://narbadajewellery.com/.The details of the Related Party
Transactions are disclosed in the financial section of this Annual Report.

(b) Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed
entity by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related
to capital markets, during the last three years:
During the last three years, the Company has not encountered any non-compliances, penalties,
or strictures from the Stock Exchanges, SEBI, or any statutory authority regarding capital market
matters.

(c) Whistle Blower Policy and affirmation that no personnel have been denied access to the
Audit Committee:
In accordance with Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulation and Section 177(10) of the Act, the
Company has established a Whistle Blower Policy. This policy provides a Vigil mechanism for
stakeholders, including Directors and employees, to report unethical behavior, fraud, and
violations of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The Whistle Blower Policy can be accessed on
the Company’s website athttps://narbadajewellery.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/08/
WHISTLE_BLOWER_POLICY-_NARBADA-_2015.264182251.pdf. No personnel have been
denied access to the Audit Committee.

(d) Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements:
The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements prescribed under Listing
Regulations for the financial year ending March 31, 2025. The status of compliance with the
discretionary requirements, as stated under Part E of Schedule II to the SEBI Listing Regulations
is given in point no. 12.
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(e) Web-link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed:
Not applicable to the Company as the Company does not have any subsidiaries; therefore,
there is no policy for determining Material Subsidiaries

(f) Web-link where policy for dealing with Related Party Transactions:
The Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party
Transactions as approved by the Board may be accessed on the Company’s website at https:/
/narbadajewellery.com/disclosures-under-regulation-46-of-lodr/.

(g) Disclosure of Commodity Price Risks and Commodity Hedging Activities:
We are exposed to the price risk associated with purchasing our raw materials, which form the
highest component of our expenses. We typically do not enter into formal arrangements with
our vendors. Therefore, fluctuations in the price and availability of raw materials may affect our
business, cash flows and results of operations. We do not currently engage in any hedging
activities against commodity price risk.

(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A).
During the financial year 2024-25, No funds was raised by the company.

(i) Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed
along with reasons thereof:
During the financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directors has accepted all the recommendations
made by the committees of the Board.

(j) Total fees for all services paid by the Listed Entity and its Subsidiaries, on a consolidated
basis, to the Statutory Auditors and all entities in the Network Firm/Network Entity of
which the Statutory Auditors is a part.
The total fees for all the Services paid by the Company to the Statutory Auditors for the FY
2024-25 are Rs. 75,000/- (Rupees Fifty Thousand only) as set out in financial Statements and
forms part of this annual report.

(k) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

S.No. Particulars Number
1. Number of Complaints received during the year Nil
2. Number of Complaints disposed off during the year Nil
3. Number of Complaints pending as at the end of the Financial Year Nil

(l) Disclosure by Listed Entity and its Subsidiaries of ‘Loans and Advances in the nature of
Loans to Firms/Companies in which Directors are interested by name and amount:
During the financial year 2024-25, the Company did not provide any loans or advances to firms
or companies in which directors have an interest.
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(m) Details of Material Subsidiaries of the Listed Entity; including the date and place of
incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the Statutory Auditors of such
subsidiaries:
This is not applicable to the Company as it does not have any subsidiary companies.

(n) Statutory Certificates:
(i) CEO/CFO Certificate:

In terms of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, the Certificate in the prescribed
format duly signed by the Managing Director and CFO of the Company which has been
reviewed by the Audit Committees, was placed before the Board of Directors along with
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025. The same is is annexed as
“Annexure – IV A” which forms part of this Corporate Governance Report.

(ii) Certificate from Secretarial Auditors on Corporate Governance:
A Certificate from, CS. Ajay Suman Shrivastava, Practicing Company Secretary,
Hyderabad (ICSI Membership No. 3489;CP No.: 3479), confirming compliances with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing Regulations during
the FY 2024-25 and the same is annexed as “Annexure – IV B” which forms part of this
Corporate Governance Report.

(iii) Certificate from Secretarial Auditors that none of the Directors on the Board of the
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as Directors of Companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority:
A Certificate from CS. Ajay Suman Shrivastava, Practicing Company Secretary, Hyderabad
(ICSI Membership No. 3489;CP No.: 3479, pursuant to Schedule V of the Listing
Regulations, confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Director of the
Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India/Ministry of Corporate Affairs
or any such statutory authority as on March 31, 2025, is annexed as “Annexure – IV C”
which forms part of this Corporate Governance Report.

(o) Dispute Resolution Mechanism at Stock Exchange (SMART ODR):
SEBI vide its Circular dated May 30, 2022 provided an option for arbitration as a Dispute
Resolution Mechanism for investors. As per this Circular, investors can opt for arbitration with
Stock Exchanges in case of any dispute against the Company or its RTA on delay or default in
processing any investor services related request. Link for the same is assessable at the website
of the Company.

12. NON-COMPLIANCE OF ANY REQUIREMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
OF SUB-PARAS (2) to (10) ABOVE, WITH REASONS THEREOF SHALL BE DISCLOSED:
There has been no non-compliance with any requirement of the Corporate Governance Report
as stipulated from sub-paragraphs (2) to (10) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.
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13. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT SHALL ALSO DISCLOSE THE EXTENT TO WHICH
THE DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS AS SPECIFIED IN PART E OF SCHEDULE II HAVE
BEEN ADOPTED:
In addition to the compliance with mandatory requirements, the Company has also adopted and
complied with the following non-mandatory requirements in terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations:

(a) The Board: The Board periodically reviewed the compliance of all the applicable laws and steps
taken by your Company to rectify instances of non-compliance, if any. Your Company is in
compliance with all mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations.  Your Company has a
Non-Executive Independent Chairman and hence, the need for implementing the non-mandatory
requirement i.e. maintaining a Chairperson’s office at the Company’s expenses and allowing
reimbursements of the Company’s expenses and allowing reimbursement of expenses incurred
in performance of his duties, does not arise.

(b) Shareholders’ Rights: Your Company ensures that the disclosure of all the information is
disseminated on a non-discretionary basis to all the Shareholders. The Financial performances
of the Company on quarterly basis including summary of the significant eventsare published in
English and Local Telugu Newspaper and the quarterly results along with press release and
investor presentations are posted on the website of the Company.

(c) Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report: The Auditors have expressed an unmodified opinion in their
report on the financial statements of the Company.

(d) Separate posts of Chairperson and Managing Director: The Company is not mandated to comply
with the said requirement during the year under review.

(e) Reporting of Internal Auditors: The Internal Auditors of the Company submits their report to the
Audit Committee for review on quarterly basis

14. THE DISCLOSURES OF THE COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REQUIREMENTSSPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND CLAUSES (B) TO (I) OF SUB-
REGULATION (2) OF REGULATION 46.
The Company is in compliance with the Corporate Governance requirements as specified under
Regulation 17 to 27 read with clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Listing
Regulations, to the extent as applicable, Details of the same is provided in the table given
below:

S.No. Particulars Regulation Brief Description ofRegulation Compliance
Status (Yes /

No/ NA)
1 Board of Directors 17 (1) Board Composition Yes

17 (2) Meeting of Board ofDirectors Yes
17 (3) Review of ComplianceReports Yes
17 (4) Plans for orderly succession or appointments Yes
17 (5) Code of Conduct Yes
17 (6) Fees / Compensation Yes
17 (7) Minimum Information to beplaced before Board Yes
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17 (8) Compliance Certificate Yes
17 (9) Risk Assessment &Management Yes
17 (10) Performance evaluation Yes

2 Audit Committee 18(1) Composition of Audit Committee &
Presence of the Chairman of the
Committee at the Annual General Meeting Yes

18(2) Meeting of Audit Committee Yes
18(3) Role of Committee and Review of

information by the Committee Yes
3 Nomination and 19 (1) &(2) Composition of Nomination & Yes

Remuneration Remuneration Committee
Committee

19(3) Presence of the Chairman of the Committee Yes
at the Annual General Meeting

19(4) Role of Committee Yes
4 Stakeholders 20 (1),(2) Composition of Stakeholders Yes

Relationship &(3) Relationship Committee
Committee

20 (4) Role of Committee Yes
5 Risk Management 21 (1), Composition and role of

Committee (2)& (3) Risk Management Committee NA
21(4) Role of the Committee NA

6 Vigil Mechanism 22 Formulation of Vigil Mechanism for Yes
Directors and Employee

7 Related Party 23(1),(2),(3) Policy for Related Party Transactions Yes
Transaction (5),(6), (7),

(8) & (9)
23 (2) &(3) Approval including omnibus approval Yes

of Audit Committee for all Related
Party Transaction and review of
Transaction by the Committee

23(4) Approval for material Related Yes
Party Transactions

8 Subsidiaries of 24(1) Composition of Boardof Directors NA
the Company of unlisted material subsidiary

24 (2), (3), Other corporate Governance NA
(4), (5) & requirements with respect to
(6), 24(A) subsidiary of listed entity

9 Obligations with 25 (1) & (2) Maximum Directorship &Tenure Yes
respect to
Independent
Directors
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25 (3) Meeting of Independent Directors Yes
25 (4) Review of Performance by the Yes

Independent Directors
25 (7) Familiarization of Independent Directors Yes
25 (8) Declaration of Independence Yes

10 Obligations with 26 (1) & (2) Memberships in committees Yes
respect to
Directors and
Senior
Management

26 (3) Affirmations with compliance to Yes
Code of Conduct from members
Board of Directors and Senior
Management personnel

26 (5) Policy with respect to Obligations of
Directors and Senior Management Yes

11 Other Corporate 27(1) Compliance of Discretionary Yes
Governance Requirements
Requirements

27(2) Filing of Quarterly Compliance Yes
Report on Corporate Governance

12 Disclosures on 46(2)(b) Terms and conditions of appointment Yes
Website ofthe of Independent Directors
Company

46(2)(c) Composition of various Committees
of Board of Directors Yes

46(2)(d) Code of Conduct of Board of
Directors and Senior Management
Personnel Yes

46(2)(e) Details of establishment of Vigil Yes
Mechanism/Whistle Blower policy

46(2)(f) Criteria of making payments to
Non-Executive Directors Yes

46(2)(g) Policy on dealing with
Related Party Transactions Yes

46(2)(h) Policy for determining
Material Subsidiaries NA

46(2)(i) Details of familiarization programmes
imparted to Independent Directors Yes
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ANNEXURE - VII
CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

[Pursuant to Regulation 46 read with Schedule V(E) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To
The Members,
NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERYLIMITED
1st Floor, 3-6-307/1, 3-6-307/2, 3-6-308/1, Hyderguda Main Road,
Simple Natural Systems,  Basheerbagh, Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 500004

We have examined the records of Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited, Hyderabad (BSE Scrip Code
- 519455), for the purpose of certifying compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and
paragraph C, D, of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) as amended, with BSE Limited for the financial year ended
31st March 2025 as made available physically and remotely. We have obtained the required information
which is to the best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification.

Managements' Responsibility: The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the
responsibility of the Management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of the
Corporate Governance stipulated in Listing Regulations.

Auditor's Responsibility: Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation
thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
Company. We have examined the compliance documents and other relevant records and documents
maintained by the Company for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance
with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Company
Secretaries of India (the ICSI), Standards on Auditing specified by ICSI, in so far as applicable for the
purpose of this certificate.

Opinion: Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and
explanations provided to us and the representations provided by the Management and based on our
reliance upon such representations, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2)
and para–C and D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2025.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company

AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA
Practicing Company Secretary

Place: Hyderabad Membership No: 3489; PCS: 3479
Date: 08-08-2025 UDIN:  F003489G000970136
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ANNEXURE- IV (A)

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
[Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015]
To
The Board of Directors,
NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED
Hyderabad

We, the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company do hereby certify in accordance
with Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
read with Part B of Schedule II thereto, that:

A. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year
ended 31st March 2025 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain any statements that might be misleading;

2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in
compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered
into by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the entity’s code
of conduct.

C. We jointly accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the listed
entity pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors namely M/s Anant
Rao & Malik, Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad and the Audit committee deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps that
have been taken or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated, to the Auditors and Audit Committee:

1. Significant changes, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year; if any;

2. Significant changes, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

3. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal
control system over financial reporting.

Sd/- Sd/-
Date:  24.05.2025 (Sanjay Kumar Sanghi) (Bajranglal Agarwal)
Place: Hyderabad Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00629693
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ANNEXURE - IV (C)
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Sub Clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To
The Members of
NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERYLIMITED
1st Floor, 3-6-307/1, 3-6-307/2, 3-6-308/1, Hyderguda Main Road,
Simple Natural Systems, Basheerbagh, Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 500004

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms returns, and disclosures received from the
Director of Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited, bearing CIN: L01222TG1992PLC014173 and BSE
Code: 519455, having registered office at 1st Floor, 3-6-307/1, 3-6-307/2, 3-6-308/1, Hyderguda Main
Road, Simple Natural Systems, Basheerbagh, Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 500004 (hereinafter
referred as the Company), remotely produced before us, by the Company for the purpose of issuing
this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub-Clause 10(i) of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 as amended.

In our opinion and to the best of my information and verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to me by the Company and its officers, I hereby certify that None of the Directors on the
Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March 2025 have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

S. Name of Director Designation DIN Date of Appointment/
No. Reappointment
1. Mr. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi Managing Director 00629693 14-10-2006/18-08-2022
2. Mr.Ritesh Kumar Sanghi Director 00628033 29-06-2007/ 26-09-2022
3. Mrs. Bhavna Sanghi Director 02681438 14-05-2014/ 21-09-2023
4. Mr.Vikram Goel Director 05104754 31-08-2024/ 30-09-2024
5. Mr. Balasubramanyam Danturti Director 10753430 31-08-2024 30-09-2024
6. Mr. Sunil Garg Director 08851283 27-08-2020/ 11-12-2020

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my
verification. This certificate is neither my assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

  Sd/-
             AJAY SUMAN SHRIVASTAVA

 Practicing Company Secretary
Place: Hyderabad Membership No: 3489; PCS: 3479
Date: 09.08.2025 UDIN: F003489G000970103
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ANNEXURE-V

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

GLOBAL ECONOMIC REVIEW:

In 2024, India’s jewellery industry was valued at around USD 89.65 billion, underscoring its strength in
a country where jewellery carries deep cultural, emotional, and financial significance. Gold—including
trends like pink and blush gold—remains the market’s core. Over the next decade, the sector is
forecasted to grow at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 5.7%, expected to reach approximately
USD 124.70 billion by 2030. This upward trajectory is being driven by the burgeoning middle class,
rising disposable income, and strong demand for gold and diamond jewellery—particularly for weddings
and traditional ceremonies.

Diamond jewellery, particularly popular in bridal segments, is expected to see a higher growth rate of
6.6% from 2024 to 2030. The rise in demand is further supported by a consumer shift towards luxury
and branded jewellery, and economic factors like increased urbanization and rising GDP per capita.
With a young median age of around 27 years, the demographic is driving demand in bridal and fashion
jewellery segments. The future of India's jewellery market looks promising with the integration of
technology in sales and production.

Online jewellery sales in India are witnessing rapid growth, with projections indicating a compound
annual growth rate (CAGR) exceeding 8%. While offline retail still accounts for more than 85% of total
jewellery sales, digital platforms are steadily gaining momentum, driven by rising consumer confidence
and the convenience of online shopping. Leading brands are increasingly focusing on strengthening
their digital presence—leveraging websites for marketing, engaging customers through social media,
and investing in digital advertising.

Innovative technologies such as augmented reality are further enhancing the online shopping experience
by enabling virtual try-ons. However, key challenges like ensuring product authenticity and streamlining
return processes remain critical to building broader consumer trust. As e-commerce platforms continue
to innovate and mature, the online jewellery segment is expected to capture a significantly larger share
of the market in the years ahead.

In parallel, the gold market showed strong activity in early 2024. In the first quarter, global mine production
rose 4% year-on-year to reach 893 tonnes—setting a new quarterly record. Additionally, recycled gold
supply surged by 12% to 351 tonnes, the highest level seen since Q3 2020. This increase in recycling
was primarily driven by elevated gold prices, encouraging consumers to liquidate old jewellery.
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INDIAN ECONOMIC REVIEW

The global economy in recent times has witnessed a turbulent recovery, challenged by instability in
the financial sector, persistent inflationary pressures, and ongoing geopolitical tensions. According to
the International Monetary Fund (IMF), global growth decelerated to 2.8% in 2023, down from 3.4% in
2022, with only a modest rebound to 3.0% in 2024. Advanced economies have borne the brunt of this
slowdown, reflecting significant downward revisions in their growth projections.

In this climate of uncertainty, gold prices surged to record levels, reaffirming the metal's long-standing
reputation as a safe-haven asset. The World Gold Council reported significant rise in the average
price of gold in 2025 compared to the previous year, underlining its attractiveness during periods of
financial volatility.

India, however, stood out for its economic resilience, supported by strong domestic demand and
robust expansion in key sectors such as manufacturing and construction. Despite the global headwinds,
India's GDP growth remained solid, buoyed by a revival in private consumption and sustained industrial
output. That said, a contraction in government spending somewhat moderated the overall momentum.

The Indian jewellery market faced mixed outcomes amid these broader economic conditions. On one
hand, investment demand for gold remained strong, as evidenced by significant inflows into gold
exchange-traded funds (ETFs). On the other hand, the physical gold jewellery segment witnessed
subdued demand in the first quarter of 2024 compared to the same period last year. Elevated domestic
gold prices deterred consumers, while macroeconomic uncertainty and increased customs duties on
gold imports further influenced market behaviour and purchasing patterns.

World Economic Outlook Projection:

World Economic Outlook 2024- 3.2%        2025 (P)- 3.2%             2026 (P)- 3.3%
Note: P stands for projections

OUTLOOK:

Central banks' immediate priority is to manage inflation carefully, avoiding both premature policy easing
and delays that could result in missing targets. As central banks shift to less restrictive policies, there
should be renewed emphasis on medium-term fiscal consolidation to regain budgetary flexibility, prioritize
investments, and ensure debt sustainability. Given the varying conditions across countries, policy
responses must be tailored. Implementing reforms that enhance supply can help reduce inflation and
debt, boost growth towards pre-pandemic levels, and support progress toward higher income levels.
Multilateral cooperation is essential to mitigate the risks of geo economic fragmentation and climate
change, accelerate the transition to green energy, and facilitate debt restructuring.

Real GDP Growth – India (FY 2024–25)

Financial Year Real GDP Growth Rate (at Constant 2011-12 Prices)
FY 2023–24 8.2%
FY 2024–25 (Provisional) 6.5%
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The provisional estimate for FY 2024–25 sets real GDP growth at 6.5%, marking a deceleration
from FY 2023–24’s 8.2% growth

THE GLOBAL JEWELLERY INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

There is an increasing trend in global jewel consumption, driven by a growing inclination towards
luxury products. Jewel is valued for its ability to highlight specific body features, showcase
fashion trends, enhance personal appearance, and more. Its rising popularity among high-income
individuals as a symbol of status is boosting consumption rates. The market is also expanding
due to the increasing demand for contemporary jewel and the influx of new designers. The
global gold jewel market is expected to grow during the forecast period, fuelled by rising GDP
per capita, increasing consumer disposable income, and the appeal of gold as a long-term
investment.
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Global Jewellery Market Share (2024–25)

The pie chart above illustrates the estimated global jewellery market composition for the year
2024–25. Gold continues to dominate with 48% market share, followed by silver at 22%, diamond
at 14%, platinum at 10%, and other materials making up 6% of the market

THE INDIAN GOLD MARKET OVERVIEW:

MARKET SEGMENTATION

The Indian gold and jewellery market is diverse, segmented by product types, materials, and consumer
demographics, reflecting a wide range of offerings and preferences. Among product categories,
necklaces and rings lead the market, with necklaces generating substantial revenue due to their
widespread appeal across different styles and age groups. Rings, deeply rooted in cultural traditions—
especially for engagements and weddings—are experiencing increased demand, particularly for
customized and personalized designs.

Gold continues to dominate as the preferred material, valued for its cultural, emotional, and financial
significance. Emerging trends such as blush and pink gold are gaining popularity among modern
consumers. The diamond jewellery segment, especially in the bridal category, is also witnessing steady
growth, driven by its prominent role in engagement and wedding rituals.

While women remain the primary buyers, the men’s jewellery segment is steadily expanding, with
rising demand for items like rings, pendants, and bracelets, influenced by evolving fashion preferences
and a growing market for premium accessories. Regionally, South India is recognized for its expertise
in diamond cutting and intricate gold designs, whereas West India, particularly Surat, benefits from
well-established diamond processing infrastructure, reinforcing its status as a key jewellery
manufacturing hub.

CHALLENGES IN MARKET POSITIONING:

The Indian gold and jewellery industry is currently contending with a range of challenges that affect its
market positioning. Economic instability and frequent regulatory changes, including fluctuating
gold prices and revised customs duties, have a direct bearing on cost structures and consumer
demand. The sector also faces intense global competition, particularly from countries like China,
where lower labour costs and advancements in craftsmanship provide a competitive edge.

Evolving consumer preferences, especially among younger buyers who are increasingly drawn to
luxury materials such as diamonds and platinum, are prompting Indian jewellers to reassess
their product lines and marketing strategies. In addition, the adoption of new technologies in both
manufacturing and retail has become critical. Tools like virtual reality for virtual try-ons and robust
e-commerce platforms are now essential for customer engagement and operational efficiency.

The Indian jewellery sector continues its post-pandemic recovery amid persistent macroeconomic
shifts and evolving global dynamics. Domestic consumer demand is rebounding strongly, with
significant increase in gold jewellery consumption in fiscal 2026, despite a possible dip in volumes
due to elevated gold prices.
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CHANGES IN LIFESTYLE:
India’s gold and jewellery industry is undergoing a period of significant transformation, driven by
evolving lifestyles and shifting consumer preferences.
At the same time, the rapid expansion of online retail is reshaping how jewellery is marketed and
sold. The growing reliance on digital platforms reflects the preferences of a tech-savvy consumer
base that values convenience, personalization, and immersive shopping experiences.
While these modern trends are gaining momentum, traditional gold jewellery continues to maintain
its strong cultural significance, particularly during festivals, weddings, and other ceremonial
occasions. However, there is a clear shift towards contemporary styles and alternative materials,
as jewellers aim to meet the diverse and evolving tastes of today’s consumers.

Risk associated with business:
a. Economic risk: Economic slowdown can affect the demand and the sales for the company.

Mitigation: The Company has a diversified product portfolio that generates robust sales from
either category to balance any uncertain circumstances. The present Indian economy

b. Gold price fluctuation risks: Gold price fluctuation risk could arise on account of frequent changes
in gold prices either up or downside momentum. It could have adverse impact on earnings. Your
Board will take appropriate action in managing the fluctuation impact in gold price movement
from time to time.

c. Change in Government Policies New government regulations pertaining to taxation and banking
stringent norms will affect the demand and supply chain. Your company with help of well-
experienced IT and managerial personnel, the implications of all these regulations are clearly
analysed, interpreted and necessary compliance measures are undertaken.

d. Human Resources: Employee attrition may affect the operation of the Company. Mitigation: The
Company encourages new talent and provides specialised training to the sales force to ensure
the roots are grounded well, improving the performance standards, improving incentive scheme
to the employees and positively contribute towards growth of the company.

e. Seasonal Risk: Sluggish sales of products due to seasonal changes may affect profitability of
the Company. Mitigation: The wide ranged designed product profile and customized product will
help against the seasonal ups and downs.

f. Compliance risk Non-compliance of regulations may raise the operation risk for the Company.
Mitigation: The Company has a structured internal control system in place to ensure all statutory
rules and regulations are met including changes in taxation and other regulatory framework.

Localized Strategy at Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited
At Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited, we recognize that India’s cultural and regional diversity
requires a highly localized approach. Our targeted local strategy is designed to cater to varied
geographies and customer segments across the country. We run state- and city-specific brand
campaigns, incorporating regional languages to ensure our messaging resonates with local
audiences. Our product offerings are tailored to suit regional tastes, crafted in collaboration with
local artisans who bring cultural authenticity to every piece.
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Additionally, our showrooms are staffed with personnel fluent in local languages and familiar with
regional customs, helping create a welcoming and culturally relevant shopping experience. This end-
to-end localization strategy enables us to form deeper connections with our customers,
strengthening our position as a trusted and respected jeweller.
Engaging Rural and Semi-Urban Markets
In India’s rural and semi-urban regions, jewellery is more than adornment—it is a reflection of
cultural heritage and financial security. These markets account for over half of the nation’s gold
jewellery demand, presenting immense opportunities for long-term growth.
Government initiatives aimed at revitalizing the rural economy—through investment in infrastructure,
agriculture, and livelihood enhancement—are expected to boost income levels and, in turn,
increase demand for gold and jewellery. However, the sector continues to face challenges, notably
the limited presence of organized jewellery retailers in rural areas. High operational and setup
costs have slowed penetration into these regions.
Despite these barriers, the growth potential in rural India remains vast. Overcoming these
challenges could unlock a new era of expansion for the industry, allowing us to bring the craftsmanship
and elegance of fine jewellery to underserved markets.
COMPANY OVERVIEW:
Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited (NGJL) is a prominent entity within the Hyderabad-based
Sanghi Global Group (SG Group), a legacy business now led by the fourth generation of
professionals in the gems and jewellery industry. The Company is renowned for its specialization in
the design, manufacturing, and trade of diamond and coloured gemstone-studded jewellery.

NGJL operates a fully integrated, state-of-the-art production facility in Hyderabad, equipped
with advanced machinery and technology. This facility supports the manufacturing of a wide assortment
of jewellery pieces, including rings, earrings, bracelets, bangles, short and long necklaces, and
choker sets, with a total installed capacity of approximately 40 kilograms per month.

As a leading manufacturer and exporter in the niche market of premium flat diamond and coloured
stone-studded jewellery, NGJL has established itself as a significant player in a space marked by
limited organized competition.

The Company upholds its longstanding tradition of craftsmanship and quality, delivering products
that meet the highest standards along with exceptional customer service. Our emphasis on
localization, cultural relevance, and customer satisfaction continues to strengthen NGJL’s
reputation as India’s trusted jeweller, committed to exceeding the expectations of a diverse and
evolving clientele.
SWOT ANALYSIS:

Strengths:
1. Wide Range of Products: Offering a diverse range of jewellery products, from traditional to

contemporary designs, caters to various customer preferences, enhancing market reach.

2. Extensive Network: NGJL has a broad geographical footprint that facilitates accessibility for a
wide customer demographic.
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3. Precision Tools: State-of-the-art machinery and precision tools ensure high-quality
craftsmanship and consistency in jewellery manufacturing. This minimizes defects and enhances
the overall quality of the products.

4. Advanced Design Software: Cutting-edge design software enables intricate and accurate
designs, allowing for the creation of unique and customized jewellery pieces that meet high
standards.

Weaknesses:
1. Dependence on Global Supply Chains: Vulnerable to disruptions from geopolitical tensions,

natural disasters, and trade policy changes.

2. Price Volatility: Subject to fluctuations due to market speculation and changing demand,
impacting profitability and stability.

Opportunities:
1. Category Expansion: We will be looking for opportunities in the emerging categories within the

jewellery segment, such as lightweight and everyday wear jewelleries.

2. Rising Popularity of Customized and Ethical Jewellery: Growing consumer preference for
personalized and ethically sourced jewellery creates demand for customized designs and conflict-
free stones.

3. Luxury Market Growth: The expanding luxury market, driven by high-net-worth individuals,
presents opportunities for premium and high-value gemstone and diamond products.

4. Diversification of Product Offerings: Expanding product lines to include fashion jewellery,
high-tech wearable tech, and collectibles to capture a broader customer base.

Threats:

1. Economic Fluctuations: Economic downturns or instability can reduce consumer spending
on luxury items, including gemstones and diamonds.

2. Supply Chain Disruptions: Dependence on complex global supply chains makes the industry
vulnerable to disruptions from geopolitical tensions, trade barriers, and natural disasters.

3. Intense Competition: The jewellery market is highly competitive with numerous players, both
large and small, which can impact market share and pricing strategies.

Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy:

Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited has established robust internal control systems that are well-
aligned with the size and nature of its operations. These controls govern key areas such as the
procurement of raw materials, components, plant and machinery, equipment, and other assets, as
well as the sale of finished goods. These procedures are designed to ensure operational efficiency,
regulatory compliance, and protection of the Company's assets.
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The Company has constituted an Audit Committee, comprising independent directors, which provides
periodic oversight of the internal control framework. The committee is accessible to all employees,
encouraging transparency and facilitating the suggestion of improvements to the existing control
systems.

Key highlights of the Company’s internal control and audit mechanisms include:

• Audit Committee Oversight: The Audit Committee regularly reviews internal and external
audit plans, key findings, the adequacy of internal controls, compliance with applicable accounting
standards, and any changes in accounting policies and practices.

• Internal Audit Function: A dedicated multi-disciplinary Internal Audit team continuously monitors
compliance with internal control procedures. The team assesses the efficiency and effectiveness
of various operations and identifies key process risks, reporting their findings to both management
and the Audit Committee.

• Management Review Meetings: The Company conducts monthly meetings of the top
management committee to evaluate ongoing operations and review strategic plans across critical
business functions, enabling proactive decision-making and performance tracking.

These systems collectively ensure that the Company operates with integrity, efficiency, and
accountability.

• Operational Performance

Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited demonstrated resilient performance during the year, achieving
a Net Profit of ̀ 488.76 Lakhs, maintaining operational stability in line with the previous year’s profit of
`508.48 Lakhs. The Company also recorded a notable increase in revenue, reaching ̀ 8,563.52 Lakhs,
reflecting continued business growth. With a strong foundation in place, the Company remains committed
to delivering enhanced results in the years ahead.

CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS:

Pursuant to provisions of Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 read with Schedule V
part B(1) details of changes in Key Financial Ratios is given hereunder:

SI.No Ratio Type F.Y.24-25 F.Y.23-24 % of Change
1. Current Asset Ratio 2.33 2.63 -11.39%
2. Debt Equity Ratio 0.51 0.49 3.17%
3. Debt Service/Interest Coverage Ratio 3.88 1.30 -21.83%
4. Return on Equity/Networth Ratio 9.40% 10.80% -12.94%
5. Inventory Turnover Ratio 1.08 1.19 -9.61%
6. Trade Receivable/Debtors Turnover Ratio 6.12 6.07 0.80%
7. Trade Payable Turnover Ratio 20.09 18.91 6.28%
8. Net Capital Turnover Ratio 1.73 1.90 -8.59%



NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED

90

9. Net Profit/Operating Profit Ratio 5.73% 6.03% -4.92%
10. Return on Capital Employed 8.97% 9.55% -6.11%
11. Return on Investment 56.60% 22.21% 154.85%

SHARE CAPITAL
During the year under review, the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company stands at Rs. 21,15,73,100
divided into 2,11,57,310 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

SECURED LOANS
The Company has 2776.58 Lakhs secured loans at the end of the 2024-25.

FIXED ASSETS
The Fixed Asset (Gross Block) as on 31st March 2025 amounts to Rs. 428.00 lakhs/-.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

Manpower is biggest strength in any Sector. The Company has maintained cordial relations with its
employees across all levels of the organization during the period under review. Human resource
continues to be core strength and always endeavors to work towards having satisfied workforce. The
key HR objective is to ensure that our employees are aware of the role they are expected to play in the
organization to be able to drive organizational momentum. Going ahead, the Company will continue to
invest in its people to strengthen its delivery model.

As on 31st March,2025, the manpower strength of the Company was 97 members which comprises
professionals from diverse backgrounds like finance, taxation, secretarial, legal, management, business,
supervisors, skilled and semi-skilled workers.

Disclaimer:

The above Management Discussion and Analysis containscertain forward looking statements within
the meaning ofapplicable security laws and regulations. These pertain tothe Company’s future business
prospects and businessprofitability, which are subject to a number of risks anduncertainties and the
actual results could materially differfrom those in such forward looking statements. The risksand
uncertainties relating to these statements include,but are not limited to, risks and uncertainties,
regardingfluctuations in earnings, our ability to manage growth,competition, economic growth in India,
ability to attractand retain highly skilled professionals, time and costover runs on contracts, government
policies and actionswith respect to investments, fiscal deficits, regulation,etc. The shareholders and
readers are cautioned thatin the case of data and information external to theCompany, no representation
is made on its accuracyor comprehensiveness though the same are based onsources thought to be
reliable. The Company does notundertake to make any announcement in case any of these forward-
looking statements become materially incorrect infuture or update any forward looking statements
made fromtime to time on behalf of the Company.
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*Part of Financial year
3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year

(Amount in INR)
Particulars                               Remuneration Increase/(

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 Decrease)%
Median Remuneration of all
the employees per annum*               - 2,76,000 -

ANNEXURE – VI (a)
STATEMENT SHOWING THE NAMES OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SEC. 197 READ
WITH RULE 5 (1) (2) and (3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014
1. The Ratio of remuneration to each director to the median remuneration of the employees

of the company for the Financial Year.
(Amount in Lakhs)

Director Total Remuneration Ratio to median remuneration
Sanjay Kumar Sanghi - -
Ritesh Kumar Sanghi - -
Bhavana Sanghi - -

2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year.

(Amount in INR)
Name Designation                      Remuneration Increase

                                   FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24    /(Decrease) %

SanjayKumar Sanghi - - -

Ritesh Kumar Sanghi - - -

Bhavana Sanghi - - -

Bajranglal Agarwal Chief Financial Officer 11,26,100 10,20,000 10.40

Harsha Patidar Company Secretary 78,050* 1,70,553

Riya Jindal Company Secretary 4,17,128*
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4.  No. of Employees on the Roll of Company:
Particulars Number
The number of employees on the rolls of the
company as on March 31, 2025 97

5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and details if there
are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration

Particulars Increase/(Decrease) %
Average percentage increase in the remuneration of all Employees* -
(Other than Key Managerial Personnel)
Average Percentage increase in the Remuneration of
Key Managerial Personnel 25%

*Employees who have served for whole of the respective financial years have been considered.

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company.
The Company is in compliance with its remuneration policy.
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ANNEXURE – VI (b)
Statement showing the names of the Top Ten Employees in terms of Remuneration

drawn as per Rule 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment And Remuneration
Of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(Amount in Rs.)

S Name Designation Remune- Nature of Qualification Date of The age of The last The percen- Whether any
No. of the of the ration employment and commenc- the employment tage of such

Employee employee received whether experience ement of employee held by such equity employee is
contractual of the employment employee shares a relative of
or otherwise employee before held by the any director

joining the employee or manager
Company in the of the

Company Company
within the and if so,
meaning of name of
clause (iii) such
of sub rule director or
(2) of Rule manager
5 of the
Companies
(Appointment
and Remu
neration of
Managerial
Personnel)
Rules,2014.

1 Tejas Sanghi Business-Head 38,36,864 Permanent BBA 2021 30 - 5.75% Son of Mr.
Sanjay
Kumar
Sanghi

2 Sakshi Sanghi Associate 31,45,349 Permanent BMS 01.0.1.23 29
Business
Development

3 Bajranglal Agarwal Chief Financial
Officer 11,26,100 Permanent B. Com 01.08.18 71 Admin Head

4 A.Srikanth Production
Manager              7,94,550 Permanent B. Com 01.04.04 43 Data Entry

5 T. Vijay Kumar Sales 7,10,582 Permanent B. Com 01.02.18 36 Jr. Sales
6 Riya Jindal Company 4,17,128 Permanent CS 31.08.24 30 CS

Secretary &
Compliance
officer

7 Shailesh ……. 4,15,886 Permanent ….. ….. …..
Neelkanth
Kanbargi

8 N. Mohan Babu Accounts 3,74,667 Permanent Inter 09.02.18 36 Accountant
9 Lakshimikanta

Samanta QC 3,38,287 Permanent B. Com 01.11.22 41 Worker
10 Gourav Jana …… 265066 Permanent ..... …… …..
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Annexure- VII

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
1. A brief Outline of the company’s CSR Policy:

The policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is adopted by the Company to align its
philosophy to initiate measures and pursue socially useful projects and programs with the
objectives and CSR activities as recommended by the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
from time to time in accordance with Section 135 read with Schedule VII to the Companies Act,
2013 (“The Act”).

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:
Sl Name Designation No. of meetings No. of meetings of
No. of CSR CSR

Committee held Committee attended
during the year during the year

1. Shri. Sanjay Kumar Sanghi Chairman,
Managing Director
of the Company 1 1

2. Shri Sunil Garg Member,
Independent Director 1 1

3. Smt. Bhavna Sanghi Member, Director 1 1

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:
www.narbadajewellery.com

4. Provide the executive summary along with the web-link of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable: Not Applicable
since the Company’s average CSR obligation is less than Rupees Ten Crores in the three
immediately preceding financial years.

5. Details of Amounts

Sl. No. Particulars Amount in Rs.
(a) Average Net Profit of the Company as per sub-section (5)

of section 135 Rs.5,41,66,000/-
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per

sub-section (5) of section 135 Rs.10,83,320/-
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or

activities of the previous financial years. 0
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any -
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]. Rs.10,83,320/-
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6. Amount Spent on CSR Projects (both ongoing Project and other than ongoing project):
a) Ongoing Project:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)

Sl. Name of Item from Local area Location of Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
No. the the list of (Yes/No). the project. duration. allocated spent in the transferred Impleme- Implementation -

Project. activities in for the current to Unspent ntation Through
Schedule VII State.  Dist- project financial CSR Account - Direct Implementing
to the Act.             rict. (in Rs.) Year for the project (Yes/No). Agency

(in Rs.). as per Section Name CSR
135(6) (in Rs.). Registration

number.

- - - - - - - - - - - -
Total - - - - - - - - - -

b) Other than Ongoing Project:
Sl. CSR project or Sector in Projects or Amount outlay Amount Cumula Amount
No. Activity identified which the programs (budget) project spent on tive Direct or

project is (1) Local area or other or programs-wise the projects expendi through
covered (2)Specify the State (Rs. in Lakhs) or programs ture Implement

And district where Sub-heads upto the ing agency
projects or Programs 1. Direct reporting
was undertaken Expenditure period

on projects (Rs. in
or programs lakhs)
2.Overheads:
(Rs. in lakhs)

01. Adoption of Comprehensive Local Area- 11,10,000/- - Direct 11,10,000/- Through
One Teacher development of Telangana and Expenditure implementing
School tribals and also Andhra Pradesh. agency-

efforts brethren “Friends of
particularly Tribal
education of Society”
Children and
health and
economic care

Total 11,10,000/- 11,10,000/-

c) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
d) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
e) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+ (b) +(c)]:  Rs. 11,10,000/-
f) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:
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Total Amount                                               Amount Unspent (In Rs.)
transferred to Unspent CSR Account Amount transferred to any fund
Total Amount as per section specified under Schedule VII
Spent for the 135(6).  as per second proviso to section
Financial Year. 135(5).
(in Rs.)

Amount. Date of Name of Amount. Date of
transfer. the Fund transfer.

Rs.11,10,000/- NIL NA NA NA NA

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any
Sl.No. Particular Amount (in Rs)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per

sub-section (5) of section135 10,83,320/-
(ii) Total Obligation for the Financial Year 10,83,320/-
(iii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year         11,10,000/-
(iv) Excess amount spent for the financial year 26680/-
(v) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities

of the previous financial years, if any 0
Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 26680/-

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
financial years:

Sl. Preceding Amount Balance Amount Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount Defic
No. Financial transferred Amount in Spent in under Schedule VII as per section remaining iency,

Year. to Unspent Unspent the 135(6), if any. to be if any
CSR CSRAccount Financial spent in
Account under sub- Year succeeding
under sub- section (6) (in Rs.) financial
section (6) of section years.
of section 135 (in Rs.) (in Rs.)
135 (in Rs.)

Amount (in Rs).         Date of transfer.

1. NA 0 0 0 0              0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0              0 0 0

 8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No
If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/acquired: Not Applicable
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Furnish the details relating to such assets so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

S. No. Short Pin code Date Amount of Details of the entity/ Authority/ beneficiary
Particulars of the of CSR of the registered owner
of the property Creation amount
property or or asset spent
asset [including
complete address CSR Registration Name Registered
and location of Number, if applicable address
the property]

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal
office/ Municipal Corporation/ Gram Panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the
immovable property as well as boundaries).

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per sub- section (5) of section 135.- NA

10. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring
of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company:
The CSR Committee hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy,
are in compliance with the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Sd/-
(Sanjay Kumar Sanghi)

                                       MD and Chairman of the CSR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
The Members,
NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone Ind AS financial statements of NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY
LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprises the balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement
of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity  and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to
as “ Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit (including other comprehensive income),
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters
Revenue Recognition:
The Company recognises revenue when the
control of goods being sold is transferred to the
customer. A substantial part of Company’s
revenue relates to jewelry which involves large
number of sales contracts having varied
contractual terms. This increases the risk of
misstatement of the timing and amount of revenue
recognised to achieve specific performance
targets or expectations.

The Company and its external stakeholders focus
on revenue as a key performance indicator.

In view of the above we have identified revenue
recognition as a key audit matter.

“Inventory”
The Company’s inventories primarily comprises
jewellery of gold, diamonds, gemstones etc.
(“inventory”) We have considered existence of
inventory to be a key focus area for our audit due
to the high value and nature of inventory involved
could lead to a significant risk of loss of inventory

Auditor’s response
In view of the significance of the matter, we
applied the following audit procedures in this
area, among others, to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence:
1. Assessed the appropriateness of the

accounting policy for revenue recognition
as per relevant accounting standard.

2. We evaluated the design and
implementation of key internal financial
controls and their operating effectiveness
with respect to revenue recognition
transactions selected on a sample basis.
These included general IT controls and key
application controls over the IT systems
which govern revenue recognition, including
access controls, controls over program
changes and interfaces between different
systems.

3. We perused selected samples of key
contracts with customers to understand
terms and conditions particularly relating to
acceptance of goods.

4. We performed substantive testing of retail
sales by selecting samples of sales using
statistical sampling and tested the
underlying documentation including
verification of invoices and collections
thereon.

5. We tested, selected samples of sales
transactions made immediately pre and
post year end, agreed the period of revenue
recognition to the underlying documents.

6. We scrutinised manual journals posted to
revenue to identify unusual items.

Our principal audit procedures performed, among
other procedures, included the following:
1. Obtained an understanding of the

management’s process for safeguarding
and physical verification of inventories
including the appropriateness of the
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Key Audit Matters Auditor’s response
Company’s procedures for conducting,
reconciling and recording physical
verification of inventories.

2. Evaluated the design and implementation
of relevant controls and carried out the
testing of operating effectiveness of controls
over conducting, reconciling and recording
physical verification of inventories.

3. Tested the operating effectiveness of
controls around the IT systems for recording
of inward and outward movements of
inventory

Other information
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s
Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance
and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Director’s are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED

102

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books ;

3.  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

4. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

7. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records the Company, the Company
has not paid any managerial remuneration to any director.
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8. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. There are no pending litigations for the company that will impact the financial position of
the company;

b. The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

c. There were no amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

d. The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts:

(i), no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(ii) no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(iii) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-
statement.

e. No dividend declared/paid during the year has been made/ provided by the Company,
accordingly compliance of Section 123 of the Act, is not applicable.

f. The accounting software (i.e, Wings) used for maintenance of books of accounts of the
Company does not have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

For ANANT RAO & MALLIK,
Chartered Accountants,

FRN: 006266S

Sd/-
(V ANANT RAO)

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 28.05.2025 Membership No.022644

UDIN : 25022644BMJUTT3637
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report
The Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the Company on
the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025, we report that:

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, Capital work-in-
progress and relevant details of right-of-use of assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
Assets

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by
which fixed assets are verified during the year. In accordance with this programme, fixed
assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company does not hold any immovable
properties. Consequently, clauses 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property,
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the   records of the Company, there are no proceedings have been initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii. In respect of Inventories :

(a) (A) The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year.
In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

(B) The coverage and procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by
the   management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
Company and the nature of its business.

 (C) The Company has maintained proper records of the said stocks.  As explained to
us, there  were no material discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory
as compared to the book records.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits
in excess of Rs.5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
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records of the Company, the quarterly returns or statements comprising stock statements,
book debt statements and statements on ageing analysis of the debtors/other receivables
filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the
unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters.

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not granted any loans secured or
unsecured to parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Hence,
paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Act, with respect to the loans, investments, guarantees and securities.

v. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, The Company has not accepted any deposits, within the meaning of
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules framed there under.

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of the section 148 of the Act.

vii. In respect of statutory dues :

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
Goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues have been
regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts are payable in respect of income tax, Goods
and services tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at
31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except
the following dues :

Asst. Years Nature of the statutory dues Rs. in lakhs
AY 1999-2000 Income Tax 0.89
AY 2003-04 Income Tax 0.41
AY 2015-16 Income Tax 1.00

b)  According to information and explanations given to us and records of the Company examined
by us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Value added Tax, Customs Duty or Cess outstanding
on account of any disputes
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viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the
records, there were no transactions which are  not recorded in the books of account have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans
along with interest to the Banks.

(b) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the  records of the Company, during the year, the Company has not availed any fresh
term loans.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by the Company.

(e ) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not  taken funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries or Associates.

(f) ) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, The Company has not raised loans during the year on the
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or associates.

x. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, The Company did not raise any money by way of initial
public offer or further  public offer  (including debt instruments)  and term loans during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, during the year the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures (full or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of Order is not applicable

xi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, no material fraud by the company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act has  been filed in  Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up to
the date of this report.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records  of  the Company,  there were no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year and upto the date of this report.
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xii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable.

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards;

xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to
be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable

(b) According  to  the information and  explanations given to us, The Company does not have
any Core Investment Company as part of the group and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. As we are the continuing auditor of this Company, paragraph 3(xviii) is not applicable.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. (a) The  Company  has  fully  spent the required amount towards  Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there is no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer
to a Fund specified in  Schedule VII to the Companies Act or  special  account in  compliance
with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.  Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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(b) In  respect  of  ongoing  projects, the Company does  not have any unspent Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of the financial year. Hence, reporting
under clause  3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xxi. The company does not have any investment in any entity. Hence, Company is not required to
prepare consolidated financial statements and reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not
applicable.

For ANANT RAO & MALLIK,
Chartered Accountants,

FRN: 006266S

Sd/-
(V ANANT RAO)

Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date: 28.05.2025 Membership No.022644

UDIN : 25022644BMJUTT3637
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Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. NARBADA GEMS AND
JEWELLERY LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
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external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively except recording of audit trail (edit log) facility as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For ANANT RAO & MALLIK
Chartered Accountants,

FRN : 006266S

Sd/-
 V. ANANT RAO

 Partner
Place : Hyderabad Membership No. 022644
Date : 28-05-2025 UDIN : 25022644BMJUTT3637
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(Rs. in lakhs)BALANCE SHEET FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025
Particulars Note No. 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

A Assets
1 Non-Current assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 1A  428.44  420.90
(b) Capital Work-in-progress 1B  -  -
(c) Intangible Asset 1C  8.04  4.08
(d)  Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets 2  116.47  115.23
(e) Deferred tax Asset (net) 3  6.02  4.05
(f) Other non-current assets  -  -

Total Non - Current Assets  558.98  544.26
2 Current assets
(a)  Inventories 4  6,470.80  6,314.32
(b)  Financial assets

(i) Investments 5  35.70  35.75
(ii) Trade receivables 6  2,051.64  739.65
(iii) Cash & Cash Equivalents 7  43.00  14.96
(iv) Other financial assets  -  -

(c)  Current tax assets (net)  -  -
(d)  Other Current assets 8  23.90  67.67

Total Current Assets  8,625.04  7,172.34
Total Assets  9,184.02  7,716.60

B Equity & Liabilities
1 Equity
(a)  Equity share capital 9  2,118.41  2,118.41
(b)  Other Equity 10  3,334.99  2,845.40

Total Equity  5,453.40  4,963.81
2 Liabilities

Non-Current liabilities
(a)  Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 11  5.01  8.69
(b)  Provisions 12  28.20  19.76
(c)  Deferred tax liabilities (net) 13  -  -

Total Non-Current Liabilities  33.21  28.46
Current liabilities

(a)  Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14  2,771.57  2,440.98
(ii) Trade payables 15
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprise  -  4.29
(b) Total outstanding dues other than

micro and small enterpriese  619.47  78.18
(b)  Other current liabilities 16  211.12  102.95
(c)  Provisions 17  27.10  23.81
(d)  Current tax liabilities (net) 18  68.15  74.13

Total Current Liabilities  3,697.41  2,724.34
Total Equity and Liabilities  9,184.02  7,716.60

Our Report attached, For Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited,
For Anant Rao & Mallik
Chartered Accountants, FRN:006266S Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- Sanjay Kumar Sanghi Ritesh Kumar Sanghi
(V Anant Rao) Managing Director Director
Partner, Membership No.022644 DIN: 00629693 DIN: 00628033
UDIN: 25022644BMJUTT3637

Sd/- Sd/-
Hyderabad Bajranglal Agarwal Sachin Upadhyay
Date: 28.05.2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

A54756
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(Rs. in lakhs)STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2025
Particulars Note No. 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Revenue from operations 19  8,538.65  8,431.70
Other income 20  24.87  30.38
Total Income (I)  8,563.52  8,462.07
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 21  7,052.54  7,945.85
Changes in inventories 22  (156.48)  (1,017.54)
Employee benefits expense 23  410.10  410.00
Finance costs 24  236.74  175.79
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 1  60.74  37.12
Other expenses 25  296.55  222.55
Total Expenses (II)  7,900.18  7,773.78
Profit before tax and exceptional items  (I-II)  663.34  688.30
Exceptional Items  -  -
Profit before tax  663.34  688.30
Tax expense:
Current tax  176.84  182.39
Income tax pertainting to earlier years  -  0.08
Deferred tax  (2.26)  (2.65)
Profit after tax  488.76  508.48
Other Comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss (net of tax)  (1.12)  -
   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be

reclassified to Profit or Loss  0.28
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  -
   (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be

reclassified to Profit or Loss  -  -
Profit/(Loss) and other comprehensive income
after tax for the period  489.59  508.48
Earnings per equity share: 26
Basic  2.31  2.40
Diluted  2.31  2.40
"Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements" 27

Our Report attached, For Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited,
For Anant Rao & Mallik
Chartered Accountants, FRN:006266S Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- Sanjay Kumar Sanghi Ritesh Kumar Sanghi
(V Anant Rao) Managing Director Director
Partner, Membership No.022644 DIN: 00629693 DIN: 00628033
UDIN: 25022644BMJUTT3637

Sd/- Sd/-
Hyderabad Bajranglal Agarwal Sachin Upadhyay
Date: 28.05.2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

A54756
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Rs. In Lakhs)

Balance Changes in Restated Changes in Balance
as on Equity share balance as at Equity share as on
01.04.2024 capital due to 01.04.2024 capital during 31.03.2025

prior period errors the current year
 2,118.41  -  2,118.41  -  2,118.41

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Balance Changes in Restated Changes in Balance
as on Equity share balance as at Equity share as on
01.04.2023 capital due to 01.04.2023 capital during 31.03.2024

prior period errors the current year
 2,118.41  -  2,118.41  -  2,118.41

B. OTHER EQUITY (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars                              Reserves and Surplus Money

Other received Total
Securities Capital Retained Compre- on issue
Premium Reserve Earnings hensive of share
Reserve income warrants

Balance as at April 1, 2024  864.29  -  1,981.11  -  -  2,845.40
Amount received for
warrant conversion  -  -  -  -  -  -
Conversion of share
warrants into Equity shares  -  -  -  -  -  -
Profit for the year  -  -  488.76  -  -  488.76
Othr comprehensive
income/(losses)  -  -  -  0.84  -  0.84
Balance as at 31st March, 2025  864.29  -  2,469.87  0.84  -  3,334.99

Particulars                              Reserves and Surplus Money
Other received Total

Securities Capital Retained Compre- on issue
Premium Reserve Earnings hensive of share
Reserve income warrants

Balance as at April 1, 2023  864.29  -  1,472.63  -  -  2,336.92
Amount received for
warrant conversion  -  -  -  -  -  -
Conversion of share
warrants into Equity shares  -  -  -  -  -  -
Profit for the year  -  -  508.48  -  -  508.48
Othr comprehensive
income/(losses)  -  -  -  -  -  -
Balance as at 31st March, 2024  864.29  -  1,981.11  -  -  2,845.40
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(Rs. in lakhs)CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2025
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

A.  Cash flows from Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax  663.34  688.30
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 60.74 37.12
Finance Cost 236.74 175.79
Dividend Income (0.03) (0.14)
Profit on Sale of Assets 0.00 0.00
Gain on Shares investment (20.22) 1.44
Operating profit before working capital changes 940.56 902.51
Working capital changes:
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (156.48) (1017.54)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables (1312.00) 1299.04
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Financial assets (1.25) (74.10)
(Increase) / Decrease in Non current Assets 0.00 0.00
(Increase) / Decrease in Investments 0.05 21.30
(Increase) / Decrease in Other current assets 43.77 53.06
Increase / (Decrease) in Non-current Liabilities & Provisions 8.43 8.63
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Liabilities & Provisions 541.41 (651.76)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other current liabilities 108.17 65.21
Cash Generated from Operations 172.68 606.35
Direct Taxes (182.82) (114.04)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (10.14) 492.32
B.  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (72.23) (107.24)
Dividend Income 0.03 0.14
Profit on Sale of Assets 0.00 0.00
Gain on Shares investment 20.22 (1.44)
Net Cash used in investing Activities (51.98) (108.55)
C.Cash flows from Financing Activities
Finance Cost (236.74) (175.79)
Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings 326.91 (500.98)
Issue of equity shares 0.00 0.00
Issue of share warrants 0.00 0.00
Net Cash used in Financing Activities 90.17 (676.78)
Net increse/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 28.04 (293.01)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 14.96 307.97
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year  43.00  14.96

Notes:
1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out  in Ind AS -7 issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
2. The Previous years figures have been regrouped wherever necessary in order to confirm  to this year's  presentation.
Our Report attached, For Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited,
For Anant Rao & Mallik
Chartered Accountants, FRN:006266S Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- Sanjay Kumar Sanghi Ritesh Kumar Sanghi
(V Anant Rao) Managing Director Director
Partner, Membership No.022644 DIN: 00629693 DIN: 00628033
UDIN: 25022644BMJUTT3637

Sd/- Sd/-
Hyderabad Bajranglal Agarwal Sachin Upadhyay
Date: 28.05.2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

A54756
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NOTE 1B: Capital Work-in-Progress
Ageing of CWIP as on 31.03.2025 (Rs. in lakhs)

               Amount in CWIP
Less than 1-2 2-3 More than

1 year years years 3 years
Projects in progress 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Projects temporarily suspended 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Ageing of CWIP as on 31.03.2024 (Rs. in lakhs)
               Amount in CWIP

Less than 1-2 2-3 More than
1 year years years 3 years

Projects in progress 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Projects temporarily suspended 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

NOTE 1C: Intangible Asset (Rs. in lakhs)
Asset                  GROSS BLOCK AMORTIZATION                                    NET BLOCK

As at Additions Sales/ As at As at For the Sales/ As at As at As at
01.04.2024 during the Adjustments 31.03.2025 01.04.2024 Year Adjustments 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Year during the during the Year

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Software  4.95  4.73  - 9.68 0.87 0.77  - 1.64 8.04 4.08

Total Intangible Asset 4.95 4.73 0.00 9.68 0.87 0.77 0.00 1.64 8.04 4.08

(Previous year) 4.95 0.00 0.00 4.95 0.37 0.49 0.00 0.87 4.08 4.58

Particulars

Particulars

Total

Total



NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED

117

Note: 2 Other Financial Assets (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Unsecured Considered good
Deposits(others)    116.47 115.23
Total    116.47 115.23

Note:3 Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Deferred tax asset
Opening Balance  4.05 1.39
Add: During the year 2.26 2.65
Charge / (Credit) to Other Comprehensive Income (0.28)
Total 6.02 4.05

Note:4 Inventories (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Raw materials  - -
Work-in-progress 2,951.29 4,042.61
Finished goods 3,519.51 2,271.71
Total 6,470.80 6,314.32

Note:5 Investments (Financial assets) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Investments in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
 Investment In Shares (at market value) 35.70 35.75
Total 35.70 35.75

Note:6 Trade Receivables (Financial assets) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
a) Trade Receivables considered good – Secured  - -
b) Trade Receivables considered good – Unsecured 2051.64 739.65
c) Trade Receivables which have significant increase

in Credit Risk - -
d) Trade Receivables – credit impaired - -

Unbilled due
Total 2,051.64 739.65
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Ageing of Trade receivables as on 31.03.2025

Particulars                                                        Outstanding for following periods
from the date of transaction

Less than 6 Months 1-2 2-3 More than Total
6 Months - 1 Year Years years 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – 2,000.21  49.62  1.81  -  2,051.64
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – -  -  -  -  -  -
which have significant increase
in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – -  -  -  -  -  -
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables– -  -  -  -  -  -
considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which -  -  -  -  -  -
have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – -  -  -  -  -  -
credit impaired
Total 2,000.21  49.62  1.81  -  2,051.64

Ageing of Trade receivables as on 31.03.2024 (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars                                                          Outstanding for following periods

from the date of transaction
Less than 6 Months 1-2 2-3 More than Total
6 Months - 1 Year Years years 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables –  712.02  27.62  -  0.01  739.65
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables –
which have significant increase -  -  -  -  -  -
in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – -  -  -  -  -  -
credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables– -  -  -  -  -  -
considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which -  -  -  -  -  -
have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables –
credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  -

Total  712.02  27.62  -  0.01  739.65
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Note:7  Cash & Bank Balances (Financial assets) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Cash & Cash equivalents:
Cash on hand 2.81 3.62
Balances with banks in current accounts 40.20 11.35
Total 43.00 14.96

Note:8 Other Current assets (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
 GST Receivable 6.89 19.56
Other Advances 14.76 45.86
Income tax refund 2.25 2.25
Total 23.90 67.67

Note 9: Share Capital:
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Authorized share capital
Opening: 2,15,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each  2,150.00  2,150.00
Add: Changes during the year:
Zero Equity shares of Rs.10 each  -  -
Closing: 2,15,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10 each  2,150.00  2,150.00
Issued,Subscribed and Paid up capital
(a) 2,11,67,310 Equity shares of Rs.10 Each,Fully paid up  2,115.73 2,115.73
(b) 64,200 Equity Shares - Share Forfeited Account  2.68  2.68
Changes during the year:
0 Equity shares of Rs.10 each  - -
Total 2,11,57,310 equity shares outstanding as on 31.03.2025  2,118.41 2,118.41

Reconciliation of Number of Shares
Particulars                                                            Year ended March 31, 2025                Year ended March 31, 2024

(No. of shares) (Rs. in lakhs) (No. of shares) (Rs. in lakhs)
Opening Balance  2,11,57,310  2,115.73  2,11,57,310  2,115.73
Changes during the year  -  -  - -
Closing Balance  2,11,57,310  2,115.73  2,11,57,310  2,115.73
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Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent of the issued share
capital :

Particulars                                                       Year ended March 31, 2025           Year ended March 31, 2024
% of Issued (No. of % of Issued (No. of

Share Capital shares) Share Capital shares)
Equity Shares:
Ritesh Kumar Sanghi 11.86%  25,08,499 11.86%  25,08,499
Sanjay Kumar Sanghi 11.73%  24,81,434 11.73%  24,81,434
Hanumanthrai Sanghi 7.09%  15,00,000 8.69%  18,38,900
Sarala Sanghi 10.15%  21,47,300 10.15%  21,47,300
Pritha Sanghi 6.74%  14,25,800 6.74%  14,25,800
Bhavna Sanghi 7.75%  16,39,200 7.75%  16,39,200
Tejas Sanghi 6.65%  14,06,021 5.75%  12,16,813
Uday Sanghi 6.65%  14,06,020 5.94%  12,56,328

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Particulars                                         Year ended March 31, 2025          Year ended March 31, 2024           % Change

during
(No. of % of Total (No. of % of Total the year

shares) Shares shares) Shares
Equity Shares:
Ritesh Kumar Sanghi  25,08,499 11.86%  25,08,499 11.86% 0.00%
Sanjay Kumar Sanghi  24,81,434 11.73%  24,81,434 11.73% 0.00%
Hanumanthrai Sanghi  15,00,000 7.09%  18,38,900 8.69% -1.60%
Sarala Sanghi  21,47,300 10.15%  21,47,300 10.15% 0.00%
Pritha Sanghi  14,25,800 6.74%  14,25,800 6.74% 0.00%
Bhavna Sanghi  16,39,200 7.75%  16,39,200 7.75% 0.00%
Tejas Sanghi  14,06,021 6.65%  12,16,813 5.75% 0.90%
Uday Sanghi  14,06,020 6.65%  12,56,328 5.94% 0.71%
Sakshi Sanghi  7,50,000 3.54%  7,50,000 3.54% 0.00%
Mahima Sanghi  6,00,000 2.84%  6,00,000 2.84% 0.00%
Sanghi Jewellers Pvt.Ltd.  550 0.00%  550 0.00% 0.00%

 1,58,64,824 74.99%  1,58,64,824 74.99% 0.00%
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Note 10: Other Equity (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars                                               Year ended March 31, 2025                Year ended March 31, 2024
Securities Premium Reserve
Opening Balance  864.29  864.29
Add: Additions during the year  -  -
Closing balance  864.29  864.29
Other Comprehensive income
Opening Balance  -  -
Add: Additions during the year  0.84  -
Less: Reversal during the year  -  -
Closing balance  0.84  -
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance  1,981.11  1,472.63
Add: Additions during the year  488.76  508.48
Closing balance  2,469.87  1,981.11
Total  3,334.99  2,845.40

NOTES TO RESERVES
a) Securities premium The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is

recognised in Securities Premium.
b) Money received on issue of share warrants: The money received on issue of share warrants

represents the balance amount pending for conversion into equity shares.
c) Retained earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date.

Note:11 Borrowings (Financial liabilities) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Secured Loans:
Working Capital (GECL) Loan - -
Vehicle Loan  5.01 8.69
Total  5.01 8.69

Note:12 Provisions (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Provision for Gratuity  28.20 19.76
Total  28.20 19.76
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Note:13 Deferred tax liabilities (Net) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Deferred tax liabilities
Opening Balance - -
Less: During the year - -

Total - -
Note:14 Borrowings (Financial liabilities) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Secured Loans from Banks:
Working capital loan(CC) 2,767.89 2,361.84
Current maturities of long term debts:
Working Capital (GECL) Loan - 75.73
Vehicle Loan 3.68 3.41
Total 2,771.57 2,440.98

Note:15 Trade payables (Financial liabilities) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Trade Payables
(a) Outstanding dues of micro and

small enterpriese for goods - -
(b) Outstanding dues of micro and

small enterpriese for expenses - 4.29

Sub-total: - 4.29

(a) Outstanding dues other than micro and
small enterpriese -goods  619.47 71.18

(b) Outstanding dues other than micro and
small enterpriese -expense  - 7.00

Sub-total:   619.47 78.18

Total 619.47 82.47
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Ageing of Trade payables as on 31.03.2025 (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars                                          Outstanding for following periods

from the date of transaction
Less than 6 Months 1-2 2-3 More than Total
6 Months - 1 Year Years years 3 years

Outstanding dues of micro
and small enterprises  -  -  -  -  -  -
(a) Disputed dues  -  -  -  -  -  -
(b) Undisputed dues   - - - - - -
Sub-total:   - - - - - -
Outstanding dues other than micro and
small enterprises
(a) Disputed dues  -  -  -  -  -  -
(b) Undisputed dues    603.43  16.04  -  -  -  619.47
Sub-total:    603.43  16.04  -  -  -  619.47
Total    603.43  16.04  -  -  -  619.47

Ageing of Trade payables as on 31.03.2024
Particulars                                          Outstanding for following periods

from the date of transaction
Less than 6 Months 1-2 2-3 More than Total
6 Months - 1 Year Years years 3 years

Outstanding dues of micro
and small enterprises  -  -  -  -  -  -
(a) Disputed dues  -  -  -  -  -  -
(b) Undisputed dues    4.29  -  -  -  -  4.29
Sub-total:    4.29  -  -  -  -  4.29
Outstanding dues other than micro
and small enterprises
(a) Disputed dues  -  -  -  -  -  -
(b) Undisputed dues    77.73  0.45  -  -  -  78.18
Sub-total:    77.73  0.45  -  -  -  78.18
Total    82.02  0.45  -  -  -  82.47
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Note:16 Other Current liabilities (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Advance from Customers 179.74 69.40
Other 31.38 33.55
Total 211.12 102.95

Note:17 Provisions (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Provision for Gratuity 3.60 2.58
Others 23.50 21.23
Total 27.10 23.81

Note:18 Current tax liabilities (net) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Provision for income tax    68.15 74.13
Total  68.15 74.13

Note 19 : Revenue from operations (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Sale of products
  - Domestic Sales  8,532.63  8,025.00
  - Export Sales  6.02  406.70
Revenue from operations (net)  8,538.65  8,431.70

Note 20 :Other income (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Dividend Received  0.03  0.14
Exchange Rate Fluctuation  0.25  6.21
Freight Charges on Exports  -  2.49
Jobwork Income  3.09  10.22
Profit on Sale of Shares  18.75  10.30
Profit on Sale of Futures and Options  1.47  -
Profit on Sale of Assets  -  -
Profit on Shares Valuation  -  -
Other Income  1.27  1.02

 24.87  30.38
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Note 21 : Cost of raw material consumed (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Purchases    7,052.54 7,945.85

   7,052.54 7,945.85
Note 22 : Changes in inventories (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Work-in-progress
Inventory at the beginning of the year  4,042.61  3,175.23
Inventory at the closing of the year  (2,951.29)  (4,042.61)

 1,091.32  (867.38)
Finished Goods
Inventory at the beginning of the year  2,271.71  2,121.55
Inventory at the closing of the year  (3,519.51)  (2,271.71)

 (1,247.80)  (150.15)
Changes in Inventories  (156.48)  (1,017.54)

Note 23 : Employee benefits expense (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Salaries and Wages  385.56  379.23
Bonus  6.10  7.72
Contribution to Provident Fund  5.23  6.73
Contribution to ESI  0.81  1.59
Gratuity  10.58  11.21
Staff Welfare  1.83  3.51

 410.10  410.00
Note 24 : Finance costs (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Bank charges and commission 13.22 2.72
Bank Interest  223.52  173.07

 236.74  175.79

Note 25: Other expenses (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
As Auditor
- Statutory Audit  0.75  0.50
- Tax Audit  0.25  0.15

 1.00  0.65
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Bank charges and Interest  -  -
Business Promotion Expenses  4.47  11.23
Travelling & Conveyance  8.75  16.40
Transportation Charges  4.15  8.00
Power and Fuel  9.59  11.76
Repairs and Maintenance
- Repairs & Maintenance Vehicle  0.38  3.37
- Repairs & Maintenance - Building  2.22  -
- Repairs & Maintenance Others  16.08  23.97
Rates and Taxes  3.97  3.12
Postage, Telegrams & Telephones  0.31  0.74
Printing & Stationery  0.86  1.92
Insurance  3.55  3.41
Advertisement and publicity  6.83  3.92
Amc Charges  -  5.13
Jobwork charges  22.67  25.47
Consulting, professional and hallmarking Charges  52.41  37.24
Rent  122.40  33.55
Loss on Sale of Futures and Options  -  11.75
Loss on Shares Valuation  11.05  7.37
Membership fee  0.17  -
Security services  8.37  6.85
Corporate Social Responsibility  11.10
Other Expenses  6.23  6.70

 296.55  222.55

Note 26 : Earnings per share (EPS) (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

Profit after tax  488.76  508.48
Weighted average number of equity shares in
calculating basic EPS (Nos In Lakhs)  211.57  211.57
Weighted average number of equity shares in
calculating diluted EPS (Nos In Lakhs)  211.57  211.57
Basic Earnings per Equity Share  2.31  2.40
Diluted Earnings per Equity Share  2.31  2.40
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Notes to account for the year ended March 31, 2025
27. Material Accounting Policies & Notes to the Financial Statements
27.1. General Information

The Company was originally incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 on 05th May, 1992.
Currently, the shares of the Company are listed at BSE Limited. The Company is dealing in
manufacturing and trading of Gold, Color Stones and Diamond jewellery with emphasis on rose
cut and flat diamond jewellery.
The Manufacturing unit of the Company is located at 1st Floor, 3-6-307/1, 3-6-307/2, 3-6-308/1,
Hyderguda Main Road, Simple Natural Systems, Hyderabad - 500004. The Company has also
entered into the global market and started export of its specialized jewellery. In the coming
years, the Company will continue to focus on the domestic as well as Middle-East region with
the expansion of business in its core areas.
The Material Accounting Policies used in preparation of the standalone financial statements
have been discussed in the respective notes.
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on
28-05-2025.

27.2. Material Accounting Policies
27.2.1Statement of Compliance and basis of preparation of Financial Statements

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time
to time.
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
The Financial Statements are prepared under historical cost convention from the books of
accounts maintained under accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair value and in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, the national currency of India, which
is the functional currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakh (Rs. 00,000), except
when otherwise indicated.

27.2.2Current and Non-Current Classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of services rendered to customers and time elapsed
between deployment of resources and the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of the
consideration for such services rendered, the Company has considered an operating cycle of
12 months.
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The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current/ Non-
Current classification.

An asset is treated as Current when it is:
- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when it is:
- Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
- Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

27.2.3Use of estimates and judgment
The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with the recognition and
measurement principles of Ind AS requires management of the Company to make estimates
and judgements that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent
liabilities as at the date of standalone financial statements and the reported amounts of income
and expenses for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are
affected.

27.2.4Revenue Recognition

i) Operating Income
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discount and volume rebates. Revenue is
recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity,
the associated costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably and there is no continuing management involvement with the goods. The point of transfer
of risks and rewards depends upon the terms of the contract of sale with individual customers.
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ii) Other Income
The income relating to the core activities of the company which are not included in revenue from
sales / services, are accounted for under Other Income.  Other income is accounted on accrual
basis except Dividend income. Dividend income is accounted for as and when received.

27.2.5Property, Plant and Equipment’s
All Property, Plant and Equipments (PPE) are stated at carrying value in accordance with previous
GAAP, which is used as deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS using the exemption
granted under Ind AS 101.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if, and only if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of an item of PPE is the cash price equivalent
at the recognition date. The cost of an item of PPE comprises:

i) Purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting
trade discounts and rebates.

ii) Costs directly attributable to bringing the PPE to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

iii) The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located, the obligation for which the company incurs either when the PPE is acquired
or as a consequence of having used the PPE during a particular period for purposes other than
to produce inventories during that period.

The company has chosen the cost model of recognition and this model is applied to an entire
class of PPE. After recognition as an asset, an item of PPE is carried at its cost less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

27.2.6Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible
assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis, from the date that these are available for use.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives in the manner as prescribed in Schedule II of the
Companies Act 2013 except in respect of the following assets, where useful life is different than
those prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 are used:

Computer software where the useful life is less than 100% in the year of purchase
or equal to one year

27.2.7Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on straight line method as per the useful lives approved by the Board
of Directors, which are equal to those provided under schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.
The useful life of an asset is reviewed at each financial year-end. Each part of an item of PPE
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with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset and if the useful life of that
part is different from remaining part of the asset; such significant part is depreciated separately.
Depreciation on all such items have been provided from the date they are ‘Available for Use' till
the date of sale / disposal and includes amortization of intangible assets and lease hold assets.
Freehold land is not depreciated. An item of PPE is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.

The useful lives of the assets are taken as under: -

Name of Assets Useful life as adopted by the company
as per Schedule II

Furniture & Fittings 10
Office Equipment 5
Vehicles – Car 8
Plant & Machinery 15
Computers – End User Devices 3
Intangible Assets 10

27.2.8Inventory
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value.

Basis of determination of cost remain as follows:

Raw materials, Work-in-process and Finished goods - On Weighted average cost basis.

27.2.9Employee benefits
i) Short-Term Employee Benefits

As per IndAS-19, all the short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries, contributions/
benefits accrued during the quarter for current employees have been charged as an expenditure
to the profit and loss account and the short-term employee benefits which were accrued during
the quarter and which have not yet been paid were recorded as other liability under other current
liability in the Balance Sheet

ii) Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans:   The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident
fund, Employees’ State Insurance are charged to Profit & Loss Account, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before
the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme
is recognized as a other liability under other current liability in the Balance Sheet.

Gratuity: Provision made for Gratuity is charged to Profit & Loss Account and which have not
yet been paid were recorded as provision in the Balance Sheet. The Company’s liability is
actuarially determined at the end of each year. Actuarial gains/losses through remeasurement
are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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27.2.10 Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

27.2.11 Contingent Liabilities / Assets
Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in Notes to the Accounts when the company
has possible obligation due to past events and existence of the obligation depends upon
occurrence or non-occurrence of future events not wholly within the control of the company.

Contingent liabilities are assessed continuously to determine whether outflow of economic
resources have become probable. If the outflow becomes probable then relative provision is
recognized in the financial statements.

Where an entity is jointly and severally liable for an obligation, the part of the obligation that is
expected to be met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability. The entity recognises a
provision for the part of the obligation for which an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is probable, except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can
be made. Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in the General Notes forming part of the accounts.

Contingent Assets

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial statements. Such contingent assets are
assessed continuously and are disclosed in Notes when the inflow of economic benefits becomes
probable. If it’s virtually certain that inflow of economic benefits will arise then such assets and
the relative income will be recognised in the financial statements.

27.2.12 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income/
statement of profit or loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised in other comprehensive income or equity is recognised
in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.

27.2.13 Impairment
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than it
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalue amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible,
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, The Company estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified,
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected. For Available for Sale (AFS) equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:
• Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
• Breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
• It becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the

disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets are assessed for
impairment on individual basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of zero days, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade receivables; such impairment loss is reduced through
the use of an allowance account for respective financial asset. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.
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De-recognition of financial assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, The Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognized in profit or loss.

27.2.14 Financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments consist of:

• Financial assets, which include cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, unbilled revenues,
finance lease receivables, employee and other advances, investments in equity and debt
securities and eligible current and non-current assets;

• Financial liabilities, which include long and short-term loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts,
trade payables, eligible current and non-current liabilities.

Non derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value including any directly
attributable transaction costs. Financial assets are derecognized when substantial risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset have been transferred. In cases where substantial
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are neither transferred nor retained,
financial assets are derecognized only when the Company has not retained control over the
financial asset.

Subsequent to initial recognition, non derivative financial instruments are measured as described
below:

a) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
at banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and are considered part of the Company’s cash management system. In the statement
of financial position, bank overdrafts are presented under borrowings within current liabilities.

b) Investments in liquid mutual funds, equity securities (other than Subsidiaries, Joint
Venture and Associates)
These investments are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than impairment
losses, are recognized through the Statement of Profit & Loss. The impairment losses, if any,
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are reclassified from equity into statement of income. When an available for sale financial asset
is derecognized, the related cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is transferred to the
statement of income.

c) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They are presented as current assets, except for those
maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses. Loans and receivables comprise trade receivables, unbilled
revenues and other assets.

The company estimates the un-collectability of accounts receivable by analysing historical
payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and current economic
trends. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances may be required.

d) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. For these financial instruments, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short-term maturity of these instruments.

e) Foreign Currencies Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency closing rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

27.2.15 Materiality of income / expenditure:

An item of income or expenditure of one or more prior periods is considered material only if, it
exceeds 0.5% of total revenues of the company, as per last years audited Financial Statements,
in each such case.

27.2.16 Earnings per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the parent by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the
parent (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into
Equity shares
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27.2.17 Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future
cash receipts or payments.

27.2.18 Recent accounting pronouncements
• New and Amended Standards Adopted by the Company:

Ind AS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments to Ind AS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates,
changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. They also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements
The amendments to Ind AS 1 provide guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality
judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide
accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to
disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. This amendment does not have any
material impact on the Company’s financial statements and disclosures.

Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes
The amendments to Ind AS 12 Income Tax narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception,
so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences such as leases and decommissioning liabilities. The above amendments did not
have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

• New Standards/Amendments notified but not yet effective:
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time.
During the year ended March 31, 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS 117 - Insurance Contracts and
amendments to Ind As 116 – Leases, relating to sale and lease back transactions, applicable
from April 1, 2024. The Company has assessed that there is no significant impact on its financial
statements.

On May 9, 2025, MCA notifies the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates. These amendments aim to provide clearer guidance on assessing currency
exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2025. The
Company has assessed that there is no significant impact on its financial statements.
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27.3. Additional Notes to Accounts:

27.3.1Contingent Liabilities –
Asst. Years Nature of the statutory dues Rs. in lakhs
AY 1999-2000 Income Tax (Un-Disputed) 0.89
AY 2003-04 Income Tax (Un-Disputed) 0.41
AY 2015-16 Income Tax (Un-Disputed) 1.00

27.3.2Secured Loans and Bank Overdrafts (Ref Note No 11 & 14) (Rs. in lakhs)

Name of bank As at March 31, 2025 Secured against
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd 2767.89 Property of promoters
HDFC Bank 8.69 Vehicle

27.3.3Amount due to Micro and Small enterprises:
The Company identifies the enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company
and which qualify under the definition of Micro and Small Enterprises (MSME) as defined under
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises development Act, 2006.

Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of amount payable to such enterprise as at 31st March
2025 has been made in the financial statements (as disclosed in Note No. 15 - Trade Payables)
on the basis of information received and available with the Company.

Rs. In Lakhs

S.no Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024

1 The principal amount remaining unpaid to suppliers
as at the end of the year - 4.29

2 The amount of interest accrued during the year and
remaining unpaid at the end of the year* - -

3 The amount of interest paid in terms of section 16,
along with the amount of the payment made to the
Supplier beyond the appointed day during the year - -

4 The amount of interest due and payable for the period
of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under this Act. - -
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27.3.4Financial Instruments- Fair Values and Risk Management
i) Financial Instruments by Categories

The following tables show the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities by categories. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial
liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair
value.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows as on
March 31, 2025:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Cost Financial assets/ Financial assets/ Total Total
liabilities at liabilities at fair carrying fair

FVTPL value value value
through OCI

Assets:
Other Financial
Assets
(Ref Note No.2) 116.47 - - 116.47 116.47
Investments
(Ref Note No.5) 32.01 3.69 - 35.70 35.70
Trade Receivable
(Ref Note No.6) 2051.64 - - 2051.64 2051.64
Cash & Cash
Equivalents
(Ref Note No. 7) 43.00 - - 43.00 43.00
Liabilities:
Borrowings
(Ref Note No 11
& 14) 2776.58 - - 2776.58 2776.58
Trade Payable
(Ref Note No.15)   619.47 - - 619.47 619.47
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The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories were as follows
as on March 31, 2024:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Cost Financial assets/ Financial assets/ Total Total
liabilities at liabilities at fair carrying fair

FVTPL value value value
through OCI

Assets:
Other Financial
Assets (Ref Note
No.2) 115.23 - - 115.23 115.23
Investments
(Ref Note No.5) 21.00 14.75 - 35.75    35.75
Trade Receivable
(Ref Note No.6) 739.65 - - 739.65 739.65
Cash & Cash
Equivalents
(Ref Note No. 7) 14.96 - - 14.96 14.96
Liabilities:
Borrowings
(Ref Note No 11
& 14) 2449.68 - - 2449.68 2449.68
Trade Payable
(Ref Note No.15) 82.47 - - 82.47 82.47

ii) Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 - Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets.

Level 2 - Level 2 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Level 3 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using inputs that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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The following tables show assets and liabilities which are measured at amortized cost
for which fair values are disclosed:

(Rs. in lakhs as at March 31, 2025)

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Valuation Significant
Technique and unobservable

key inputs inputs
Financial assets
Security deposits
(ref note no 2) - - 116.47 116.47 - -
Total financial assets - - 116.47 116.47 - -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
(ref note no 11 & 14) - - 2776.58 2776.58 - -
Total financial liabilities - - 2776.58 2776.58 - -

                                            (Rs. in lakhs as at March 31, 2024)
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Valuation Significant

Technique and unobservable
key inputs inputs

Financial assets
Security deposits
(ref note no 2) - - 115.23 115.23 - -
Total financial assets - - 115.23 115.23 - -
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
(ref note no 11 & 14) - - 2449.68 2449.68 - -
Total financial liabilities - - 2449.68 2449.68 - -

iii) Financial risk management
The company's activities expose it to the following financial risks:

- market risk (see (a));
- credit risk (see (b)); and
- liquidity risk. (see (c)).

The company has not arranged funds that have any interest rate risk.

a) Market risk
Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign Currency Risk is the risk that the Fair Value or Future Cash Flows of an exposure will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign currency rates. Exposures can arise on account of the
various assets and liabilities which are denominated in currencies other than Indian Rupee.
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Foreign Currency Exposure (USD. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Trade and Other Receivables NIL NIL

Sensitivity:
As of March 31, 2025 increase or decrease of the respective foreign currencies compared to
our functional currency would not have impact our profit before tax.

Price Risk
The company is not expose to price risk arises out of the investments in equity shares because
the company does not hold any investment in equity shares.

b) Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by a counterparty resulting in a financial
loss. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade
receivables. Accordingly, credit risk from trade receivables has been separately evaluated from
all other financial assets in the following paragraphs

Trade Receivables:
The company has outstanding trade receivables amounting to INR 2,051.64 (Rs. in lakhs) as of
March 31, 2025 and INR 739.65 (Rs. in lakhs) as of March 31, 2024 respectively. Trade
receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers.

Impairment on trade receivables is recognized based on expected credit loss in accordance
with provisions of Ind AS 109. The company’s historical experience for customers, present
economic condition and present performance of the customers, future outlook for the industry
etc is taken into account for the purposes of expected credit loss.

Credit risk exposure:
An analysis of age of trade receivables at each reporting date is summarized as follows:

(Rs. in lakhs as at March 31, 2025)

Particulars Gross Impairment Carrying
amount Value

Past due less than 30 days 313.28 - 313.28
Past due more than 30 days but not more than 90 days 1216.81 - 1216.81
Past due more than 90 days but not more than 180 days 470.12 - 470.12
Past due more than 180 days but not more than 365 days 49.62 - 49.62
Past due more than 365 days 1.81 - 1.81
Total 2051.64 - 2051.64
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(Rs. in lakhs as at March 31, 2024)
Particulars Gross Impairment Carrying

amount Value
Past due less than 30 days 551.09 - 551.09
Past due more than 30 days but not more than 90 days 140.27 - 140.27
Past due more than 90 days but not more than 180 days 20.66 - 20.66
Past due more than 180 days but not more than 365 days 27.62 - 27.62
Past due more than 365 days 0.01 - 0.01
Total 739.65 - 739.65

Trade receivables are generally considered credit impaired after 365 days past due, unless the
amount is considered receivable, when recoverability is considered doubtful based on the
recovery analysis performed by the company for individual trade receivables.

Financial assets:

Credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible because our
counterparties are banks. There will be no credit risk related to employee loans as they are
adjusted against their salaries.

c) Liquidity Risk

Our liquidity needs are monitored on the basis of monthly and yearly projections. The company’s
principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from operations
and availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet
obligations when due.

Due to the dynamic nature of underlying businesses, the company maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Short term liquidity requirements consist mainly of sundry creditors, expense payable, employee
dues arising during the normal course of business as of each reporting date. The company
maintains sufficient balance in cash and cash equivalents to meet short term liquidity
requirements.

The company assesses long term liquidity requirements on a periodical basis and manages
them through internal accruals and committed credit lines.
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of non-derivative financial
liabilities.

(Rs in lakhs as of March 31, 2025)

Particulars Less than 6 months 1-3 3-5 More than Total
6 months to 1 year years years 5 years

Trade Payables (Ref note no 15) 603.43 16.04 - - - 619.47
Short term borrowings (Ref note no 14) - 2771.57 - - - 2771.57
Long term borrowing (Ref note no 11)

- - 5.01 - - 5.01
Total 603.43 2787.61 5.01 - - 3396.05

(Rs in lakhs as of March 31, 2024)
Particulars Less than 6 months 1-3 3-5 More than Total

6 months to 1 year years years 5 years
Trade Payables (Ref note no 15) 82.02 0.45 - - - 82.47
Short term borrowings (Ref note no 14) - 2440.98 - - - 2440.98
Long term borrowing (Ref note no 11) - - 8.69 - - 8.69
Total 82.02 2441.43 8.69 - - 2532.14

27.3.5Disclosure in respect of Ind AS 24 “Related Parties Disclosures”
i) List of related parties and relationship

S.
No. Description of Relationship Name of Related Parties
1. Entities on which one or more Key Management Sanghi Jewellers Private Limited

Personnel (“KMP”) have a significant influence / control. Uday Jewellery Industries Limited
2. Relatives of Key management personnel Ritesh Kumar Sanghi

Bhavana Sanghi
Pritha Sanghi
Tejas Sanghi
Uday Sanghi
Sakshi Sanghi

3. Key management personnel (KMP)
  -  Managing Director Sanjay Kumar Sanghi
  -  Chief Financial Officer Bajranglal Agarwal



NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED

144

ii) Related party transactions during the quarter are as follows:
(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars                              31st March, 2025                              31st March, 2024
Entities on Relatives KMP Entities on Relatives KMP
which one of KMP which one of KMP
or more or more

KMP have KMP have
a significant a significant
influence / influence /

control. control.
1. Purchase (Net of returns)
Sanghi Jewellers Private Limited 1195.46 - - 490.98 - -
Uday Jewellery Industries Limited 86.02 - - 30.15 - -
2. Sales (Net of returns)
Sanghi Jewellers Private Limited - - - 190.11 - -
Uday Jewellery Industries Limited - - - - - -
3. Rent Paid
Sanghi Jewellers Private Limited 32.40 - - 12.10* - -
Sanjay Kumar Sanghi - - 15.00 - - 6.60
Ritesh Kumar Sanghi - 15.00 - - 6.60 -
Pritha Sanghi - 15.00 - - 6.60 -
Bhavna Sanghi - 15.00 - - 6.60 -
Tejas Sanghi - 15.00 - - 6.60 -
Uday Sanghi - 15.00 - - 6.60 -
4. Salary Paid
Tejas Sanghi - 54.00 - - 54.00 -
Sakshi Sanghi - 42.00 - - 21.00* -
5. Rental Deposit Given
Sanghi Jewellers Private Limited - - - 24.30 - -
Sanjay Kumar Sanghi - - - - - 8.30
Ritesh Kumar Sanghi - - - - 8.30 -
Pritha Sanghi - - - - 8.30 -
Bhavna Sanghi - - - - 8.30 -
Tejas Sanghi - - - - 8.30 -
Uday Sanghi - - - - 8.30 -

*For part of the financial year
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iii) Related party balances are as follows: (Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars                              31st March, 2025                            31st March, 2024
Entities on Relatives KMP Entities on Relatives KMP
which one of KMP which one of KMP
or more or more

KMP have KMP have
a significant a significant
influence / influence /

control. control.
1.Rental Deposit Given
Sanghi Jewellers Pvt. Ltd. 24.30 - - 24.30 - -
Sanjay Kumar Sanghi - - 13.80 - - 13.80
Ritesh Kumar Sanghi - 13.80 - - 13.80 -
Pritha Sanghi - 13.80 - - 13.80 -
Bhavna Sanghi - 13.80 - - 13.80 -
Tejas Sanghi - 13.80 - - 13.80 -
Uday Sanghi - 13.80 - - 13.80 -

27.3.6Amounts due from an officer of the company
Particulars Current year Previous year
Amount due from an Officer of the company NIL NIL

27.3.7Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-115: “Revenue from
Contract with Customers)

(i) Contracts with customers
(a) Company has recognized the following revenue during the year from contracts with its customers

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sale of products 8,538.65 8,431.70
Total 8,538.65 8,431.70
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(b) Company has recognized the following amount as impairment loss against the amount receivables
from its customers or contract assets arising due to contract with its customers.

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Impairment Loss - -

(ii) Trade/Contract Balances Receivables (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
Opening Balance 739.65 2,038.69
Net Addition/deduction during the year 1,311.99 (1,299.04)
Closing Balance 2,051.64   739.65

Contract Liabilities: During the year the advances received are recognised as revenue as and when
the goods are delivered to the customer.

Practical expedients:

During the year company has entered into sales contracts with its customers where some of the
part is yet to be executed, same has not been disclosed as per practical expedient as the
duration of the contract is less than one year or right to receive the consideration established on
completion of the performance by the company.

27.3.8Value of Raw Materials, Stores and Spares Consumed and Percentage
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
Percentage Value Percentage Value

a. Raw Materials
     i.   Indigenous 100.00          7052.54 100.00          7945.85
     ii.  Imported - - - -

100.00 7052.54 100.00 7945.85
27.3.9Payments to Auditors (Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,2025 As at March 31,2024
For Statutory Audit 0.75 0.50
For Tax Audit 0.25 0.15
Total 1.00 0.65
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27.3.10 Provision of Gratuity (Rs. in lakhs)

S.No. Particulars Balance as on Balance as on
31/03/2025 31/03/2024

1 Opening Balance 22.34 11.13
2 Add: Current Service Cost 10.58 11.21
3 Add: Interest Cost - -
4 Add: Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (1.12) -
5 Less: Paid during the Year - -
6 Closing Balance 31.80 22.34

Note: Liability in respect of Gratuity, is being provided as per actuarial valuation

27.3.11 Movement of Deferred Tax
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: (Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening Balance of Deferred Tax Assets 4.05 1.39
Add/(Less): Deferred Tax Assets (Net) during the year 2.26 2.65
Charge / (Credit) to Other Comprehensive Income (0.28) -
Closing Balance of Deferred Tax Assets 6.02 4.05

Note: The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
has been recognized only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred
tax is calculated at the tax rate applicable to company for the reporting period.

27.3.12 Operating Segments – Ind AS -108

In the opinion of management, the company has no operating/reportable segment as envisaged
in Ind AS-108 as the risks and returns associated with product categories are not different.
Hence, disclosures with regard to segment reporting are not applicable to Company.

27.3.13 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-33 “Earnings Per Share
(EPS)”

a) Basic EPS
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic
EPS and Basic EPS is as follows:
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(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Earnings used in calculation of basic
earnings per share(A) 488.71 508.48
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic earnings per share(B) 211.57 211.57
Basic EPS(A/B) (Amount in Rs.) 2.31 2.40

b) Diluted EPS
The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of Diluted
EPS is as follows

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Earnings used in calculation of basic
earnings per share(A) 488.71 508.48

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of Diluted earnings per share(B) 211.57 211.57

Diluted EPS(A/B) 2.31 2.40

27.3.14 Ratio Analysis

Ratio Type Numerator Denominator F.Y F.Y % of
24-25 23-24 Change

Current Asset Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.33 2.63 -11.39%
Debt Equity Ratio Debt Equity 0.51 0.49 3.17%
Debt Service Earnings available Total Debt service 3.88 4.96 -21.83%
Coverage Ratio for debt service
Return on Equity Ratio PAT Average Shareholder’s

Equity 9.40% 10.80% -12.94%
Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 1.08 1.19 -9.61%
Trade Receivable Net Credit Sales Average Accounts
Turnover Ratio Receivable 6.12 6.07 0.80%



NARBADA GEMS AND JEWELLERY LIMITED

149

Trade Payable Purchases Average Trade 20.09 18.91 6.28%
Turnover Ratio Payables
Net Capital
Turnover Ratio Net Sales Working capital 1.73 1.90 -8.59%
Net Profit Ratio PAT Net Sales 5.73% 6.03% -4.92%
Return on EBIT less
Capital Employed Other Income Capital Employed 8.97% 9.55% -6.11%
Return on Investment Other Income Average Cash, 56.60% 22.21% 154.85%

(Excluding Cash Equivalents &
Dividend) Other Marketable

Securities +Investments
(Current+Non-Current)

Note:
1. Explanation for Change in Return on Investment is due to increase in gain on sale of shares.

27.3.1Expenditure incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility & Sustainable
Development
CSR amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the company’s act, 2013 read with
Schedule VII, thereof, by the Company during the year is Rs. 10.83 lakhs (Previous year Nil).
During the year, the company has incurred an amount of Rs. 11.10 lakhs (Previous Year Nil) on
CSR.

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Current year Previous year
Amount required to be spent by the
Company during the year 10.83 -
Balance available at the beginning of the year - -
Amount of expenditure incurred on*: - -
(i) Construction/acquisition of any assets - -
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 11.10 -
Shortfall/(Excess) at the end of the year  (0.27)  -
Total of previous year shortfall - -
Reason for shortfall - -
Nature of CSR activities Promoting education, setting up old age homes,

Eradicating hunger, poverty, and malnutrition,
setting up homes and hostels for women and
orphans, promoting health care and setting
up public libraries.
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27.3.15 Details of immovable properties not held in the name of Company     (Rs. in Lakhs)
Relevant Description Gross Title deeds Whether title Property Reason
line item of item of carrying held in the deed holder held since for not
in the property value name of is a promo which date being held
Balance (Rs. in ter, director in the
sheet Lakhs) or relative of name of

promoter*/ the Unit
director or
employee of
promoter/
director

PPE NA NA NA NA NA NA

27.3.16 Company has not revalued any Plant, Property or Equipment during the quarter or in previous
year.

27.3.17 Company does not have any undisclosed income, which has not been recorded in the books
of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessment under the Income tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant
provisions of the Income Tax Act,1961).

27.3.18 No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules
made there under.

27.3.19 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the
year.

27.3.20 Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank/FI.
27.3.21 To the best of information available at the time of transactions, the Company has not done

any transaction with another company whose name was struck off at the time of transaction
with the company.

27.3.22 Regrouping: In order to have better presentation the previous year’s figures have been re-
casted/restated/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to current quarter’s classification

Our Report attached, For Narbada Gems and Jewellery Limited.,
For ANANT RAO & MALLIK,
Chartered Accountants,
FRN:006266S Sd/- Sd/-
Sd/- Sanjay Kumar Sanghi Ritesh Kumar Sanghi
(V ANANT RAO) Managing Director Director
Partner DIN: 00629693 DIN: 00628033
Membership No.022644

Sd/- Sd/-
Hyderabad Bajranglal Agarwal Sachin Upadhyay
Date: 28.05.2025 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

A54756
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33rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Day : Tuesday
Date : 30th September, 2025
Time : 01:00 P.M.
Mode : Through Video Conferencing (VC)/

Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM).
On www.evotingindia.com.
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